
 

 
 

Governance, Audit and Risk 
Management Committee  AGENDA 
 
 
DATE: 
 

Wednesday 19 January 2011 
 

TIME: 
 

7.30 pm 
 

VENUE: 
 

Committee Room 5, 
Harrow Civic Centre 
 

 
 

 
 MEMBERSHIP      (Quorum 3) 
   
  Chairman: 

 
Councillor John Cowan  

 
  Councillors: 

 
Mano Dharmarajah 
Thaya Idaikkadar (VC) 
Nizam Ismail 
Sachin Shah 
 

Richard Romain 
Yogesh Teli 
 

  
 

  
 

Reserve Members: 
 

1. Ben Wealthy 
2. Ajay Maru 
3. Krishna Suresh 
4. Krishna James 
 

1. Tony Ferrari 
2. Stephen Wright 
3. Anthony Seymour 
 

  
 

 
 

Contact:  Lysandra Dwyer, Democratic Services Officer 
Tel:  020 8424 1264     E-mail:  lysandra.dwyer@harrow.gov.uk 

 



 

Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 19 January 2011 

 AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. ATTENDANCE BY RESERVE MEMBERS    
 
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve Members. 

 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; and  
(iii) the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that the 

Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve; 
(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives after 

the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member can only act 
as a Member from the start of the next item of business on the agenda after 
his/her arrival. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 To receive declarations of personal or prejudicial interests, arising from business to 

be transacted at this meeting, from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Committee, Sub Committee, Panel or Forum; 
(b) all other Members present in any part of the room or chamber. 
 

3. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
 That the minutes of the meeting held on 29 November 2010 be taken as read and 

signed as a correct record. 
 

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS    
 
 To receive questions (if any) from local residents/organisations under the provisions 

of Committee Procedure Rule 17 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

5. PETITIONS    
 
 To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors under 

the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 15 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

6. DEPUTATIONS    
 
 To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 

16 (Part 4B) of the Constitution. 
 

7. REFERENCES FROM COUNCIL AND OTHER COMMITTEES/PANELS   (Pages 7 
- 8) 

 
 (a) Half Year 2010/11 Treasury Management Activity Report:  Reference from 

the Cabinet meeting on 15 December 2010 
 

For the sake of economy, the report which was circulated on the agenda for 
the December Cabinet meeting is not being reprinted in this agenda, and 
Members are therefore requested to bring their copies with them to the 



 

Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 19 January 2011 

meeting. 
 

8. HALF-YEAR 2010/11 TREASURY MANAGEMENT ACTIVITY REPORT    
 
 Report of the Corporate Director Finance which was presented to Cabinet on 15 

December 2010. 
 

9. CAPITAL PROGRAMME    
 
 (a) Reference from the Cabinet meeting on 15 December 2010:  (Pages 9 - 10) 

 
  For the sake of economy, the report which was circulated on the agenda for 

the December Cabinet meeting is not being reprinted in this agenda, and 
Members are therefore requested to bring their copies with them to the 
meeting. 
 

 (b) Report of the Director of Legal and Governance Services  (Pages 11 - 24) 
 

10. IINTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS) UPDATE   
(Pages 25 - 28) 

 
 Report of the Corporate Director of Finance.  

 
11. INFORMATION REPORT - ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2009/10   (Pages 29 - 42) 
 
 Report of the Corporate Director Finance. 

 
12. INFORMATION REPORT -  RISK, AUDIT & FRAUD DIVISION ACTIVITY 

UPDATE   (Pages 43 - 130) 
 
 Report of the Corporate Director Finance. 

 
13. FOLLOW UP REPORT ON STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS    
 
 Verbal report of the Corporate Director Finance and the Council’s External Auditors. 

 
14. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 Which cannot otherwise be dealt with. 

 
 AGENDA - PART II - NIL   

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 29 November 2010 - 23 - 

 
 
 

GOVERNANCE, AUDIT AND RISK 
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE   

MINUTES 
 

29 NOVEMBER 2010 
 
 
Chairman: * Councillor John Cowan 
   
Councillors: * Mano Dharmarajah 

* Thaya Idaikkadar 
* Nizam Ismail  
 

* Richard Romain 
* Sachin Shah 
* Yogesh Teli 
 

In attendance: 
(Councillors) 
 

 Bill Stephenson 
 

 

* Denotes Member present 
 

39. Attendance by Reserve Members   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that there were no Reserve Members in attendance at 
this meeting. 
 

40. Declarations of Interest   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that there were no declarations of interests made by 
Members. 
 

41. Minutes   
 
RESOLVED:  That the minutes of the meeting held on 28 September 2010, 
be taken as read and signed as a correct record. 
 

42. Public Questions, Petitions, Deputations   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that no public questions were put, or petitions or 
deputations received at this meeting. 
 

Agenda Item 3 
Pages 1 to 6 

1



 

- 24 -  Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 29 November 2010 

RESOLVED ITEMS   
 

43. INFORMATION REPORT - Whistle-blowing - Annual Report   
 
The Corporate Director of Finance presented a report that set out how the 
Council deals with whistle-blowing complaints in accordance with the 
requirements of the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998. She reported that the 
government were intending to introduce further protection for whistle-blowers 
working in the public sector. She added that the Council had received three 
complaints in the last year.  
 
In response to questions, the Corporate Director advised that: 
 
• The whistle-blowing policy made provisions for officers to raise 

concerns relating to reasonably substantive issues.  There were 
several other ways in which officers could raise concerns. The policy 
did not explicitly provide guidance on the situation where a 
whistleblower incriminated themselves through their disclosures – this 
would be followed up.  

 
• Investigating officers would discuss with the whistleblower whether 

they were prepared to be identified and if not seek to maintain the 
complainant’s anonymity where possible; 

 
• The policy was available on the Council’s Intranet and the policy was 

regularly publicised internally; 
 
• If an officer was found to have breached Council rules an appropriate 

internal sanction such as dismissal or disciplinary action would be 
imposed. The Metropolitan Police would also become involved in an 
investigation if an incident involved criminal activity.   

  
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted. 
 

44. INFORMATION REPORT - Accounts and Governance Update Report   
 
 The Corporate Director of Finance presented a report that provided an 
update on signing the 2009/10 accounts and governance for the Council 
required to meet the requirements of the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy/ Society of Local Authority Chief Executives 
(CIPFA/SOLACE) guidance and good corporate governance. 
 
She reported that following the Governance, Audit and Risk Management 
(GARM) Committee meeting on 28 September 2010, the pension fund 
accounts were signed off as planned. Auditors deferred signing the final 
accounts pending an investigation into the management of some of the 
Council’s capital projects. The Auditors concluded that the investigation did 
not have a material impact on the accounts, which were duly signed off on 28 
October 2010. A report on the investigation would be presented to the Cabinet 
meeting on 15 December 2010 with a further report to the GARM Committee 
meeting on 19 January 2011. The Auditors would be invited to the GARM 
Committee meeting in January 2011 to respond to any questions. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted.  

2



 

Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 29 November 2010 - 25 - 

 
45. INFORMATION REPORT -  Risk, Audit & Fraud Division Activity Update   

 
 The Committee received a report that outlined the current work streams of 
the Risk, Audit and Fraud. Officers advised that: 
 
• A new Interim Risk Management Officer had been appointed since the 

report had been published. The appointee had been working on an 
Assurance Mapping project with the Service Manager for Internal Audit; 

 
• The London Authorities Mutual Limited (LAML) Supreme Court case 

had been scheduled to commence in early December 2010; 
 

• The Council were part of a consortium (Insurance London Consortium 
[ILC]) that had currently gone out to tender to appoint underwriters to 
manage the some of the Council’s insurance arrangements. A separate 
tender for external claim handlers had also been initiated. To maintain 
existing levels of independence and objectivity, underwriters appointed 
by the Council were not employed to manage external claims against 
the Council.  

 
In response to questions, an officer clarified that; 
 
• Underwriters and external claim handlers were historically appointed 

separately to maintain independence; 
 

• Housing benefit and Council tax overpayments usually arose when a 
resident failed to inform the Council of a change in their circumstances 
before payments had been processed. 

 
• Most of the £100,000 issued in salary overpayments in 2009/10 had 

been recovered. 
 
• More generally there was a possibility that any losses through fraud 

could be recovered through the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002; 
 

• Officers would provide more detailed information on individual team 
activities in update reports presented at future meetings.  

 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted.  
 

46. INFORMATION REPORT - Half Year Health and Safety Report 2010/11   
 
 A report that summarised the Council’s health and safety performance for the 
period from 1 April 2010 to 30 September 2010 and provided an update of 
activities and outcome measures, was presented to the Committee. An officer 
reported that: 
 
• The Health and Safety Executive (HSE) had served three notices 

relating to the management of asbestos in schools. The notices had 
now been lifted since the necessary improvements had been 
implemented. The HSE are expected to make further visits to the 
Council in 2011; 

 
3



 

- 26 -  Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 29 November 2010 

• The Corporate Health and Safety group, which was chaired by the 
Assistant Chief Executive, continued to meet each quarter and was 
responsible for investigating and collating evidence for accident claims 
made by employees; 

 
In response to a question raised by the Committee, officers clarified that the 
Council had completed a review of the evacuation procedure following an 
incident at the Civic Centre earlier in the year. Internal procedures had been 
updated to capture recommendations arising from this review. 

 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted.  
 

47. INFORMATION REPORT - Internal Audit Mid-Year Report 2010/11   
 
An officer presented a report that set out mid-year progress against the 
2010/11 Audit plan and key issues arising from work undertaken. The 
Committee were advised that: 
 
• Following a review of Harrow Association of Voluntary Services 

(HAVS) by Price Waterhouse Coopers (PwC) the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee had requested an Internal Audit of Grants to 
Voluntary Bodies; 

 
• The government had abolished the Financial Management in Schools 

Standard. Internal Audit would consider how assurances on schools’ 
financial management could now be obtained. 

 
In response to questions, the officer reported that: 
 
• Internal Audit was not fully staffed at present and the role profiles of 

two posts within the team were currently being reviewed. This was the 
first stage of the recruitment process. A draft specification relating to 
Internal Audit would be circulated to GARM Committee members once 
it had been finalised; 

 
• The Council’s external auditor would be excluded from the tender 

process; 
 

• Some of the recommendations made by the Internal Audit team 
following the review of stock control processes within the borough’s 
libraries had been implemented. Internal Audit would work with the 
Corporate Director of Community and Environment to consider a plan 
for implementing the outstanding recommendations. 

 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted.  
 

48. Risk, Audit and Fraud Review - Update   
 
The Corporate Director of Finance reported that the matters to be discussed 
at this item had been referred to in Agenda Item 47 - INFORMATION 
REPORT – Internal Audit Mid-Year Report 2010/11. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the update be noted. 
 

4



 

Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 29 November 2010 - 27 - 

49. Exclusion of the Press and Public   
 
RESOLVED:  That the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following items of business, on the grounds that they involve the likely 
disclosure of confidential information in breach of an obligation of confidence, 
or of exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972: 
  
Agenda 
Item No 
 

Title Description of Exempt Information 

16. INFORMATION 
REPORT – Internal Audit 
Mid-Year Report 2011/11 
(Appendix 3) 

Information under paragraph 1 
(contains information relating to any 
individual) and paragraph 7 (contains 
information relating to any action 
taken or to be taken in connection with 
the prevention, investigation or 
prosecution of crime). 
 

17. INFORMATION 
REPORT – Green and 
Amber Internal Audit 
Reports with Follow Up 
Reports 

Information under paragraph 3 
(contains information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the 
authority holding that information). 

 
 

50. INFORMATION REPORT - Internal Audit Mid-Year Report 2010/11   
 
The Committee considered Appendix 3 to the Internal Audit Mid-year report at 
agenda item 12. An officer reported that there had been lower levels of payroll 
overpayments made than in previous years and that control measures to 
minimise fraudulent transactions against the Council had been successful. 
 
RESOLVED:  That Appendix 3 be noted.  
 

51. INFORMATION REPORT - Green and Amber Internal Audit Reports with 
Follow Up Reports   
 
The Committee received a report that included internal audit monitoring 
reports on governance and control mechanisms throughout the Council as 
well as follow up reports that provided an update on assurance actions taken 
between meetings. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted.  
 
(Note:  The meeting, having commenced at 7.30 pm, closed at 8.45 pm). 
 
 
 
 
(Signed) COUNCILLOR JOHN COWAN 
Chairman 
 

5



6

This page is intentionally left blank



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\2\1\AI00066122\$eftyxj14.doc 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 
 
GOVERNANCE, AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 
19 JANUARY 2011 
 
 
REFERENCE FROM CABINET – 15 DECEMBER 2010 
 
 
Half Year 2010/11 Treasury Management Activity   
 

The Corporate Director Finance introduced the report, which set out a half- year 
summary of Treasury Management activities for 2010/11.  It was noted that the 
overall objective of Treasury Management was to manage the Council’s cash flow, 
borrowing and investments and to control the associated risks so as to maintain 
security, liquidity, maximise return on investments and minimise changes on loan 
debt with minimal risk to the Council’s assets.  
 
RESOLVED:  That 
 
(1) the half-year treasury management activity for 2010/11 be noted; 
 
(2) the Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee be 

recommended to review the report. 
 
Reason for Decision:  To promote effective financial management and comply 
with the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) Regulations 2003 and 
other relevant guidance.  To be informed of Treasury Management activities and 
performance. 
 
 

FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
 
Background Documents: 

 
Report considered by Cabinet held on 15 December 2010. 
 
Minutes of Cabinet held on 15 December 2010. 

 
Contact Officer:  
 
Daksha Ghelani, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Tel:  020 8424 1881 
Email:  daksha.ghelani@harrow.gov.uk 

 
 

Agenda Item 7 
Pages 7 to 8 

7



8

This page is intentionally left blank



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\5\8\AI00069851\$fg21w3sq.doc 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 
 
GOVERNANCE, AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 
19 JANUARY 2011 
 
 
REFERENCE FROM CABINET – 15 DECEMBER 2010 
 
 
Capital Programme   
 
Cabinet received a report of the Chief Executive, advising of an overspend in the 
Children’s Services Capital Programme.  The report also summarised how the 
overspend had arisen and the steps taken to avoid any repetition.  It was noted that 
an independent financial investigation had been undertaken by Rita Greenwood, 
Independent Financial Consultant and formerly Director of Finance, London 
Borough of Havering, and Pricewaterhouse Coopers (PwC) in this regard. 
 
The Chief Executive invited Ms Greenwood to address the meeting in respect of 
her investigation into the financial management of the projects and the capital 
programme.  Ms Greenwood stated that the investigation had related to two 
flagship projects and that, together with PwC, she had been appointed to ensure a 
transparent and open approach to the investigation.  She had interviewed a number 
of officers and reviewed numerous documents as part of her investigation.  A 
number of recommendations had been made and that the Council had shown a 
commitment to implementing the recommendations and to ensure that the whole of 
the organisation learnt from this experience. 
 
The Chief Executive apologised to residents and Councillors for the mistakes of a 
small number of staff and assured Members that all the recommendations made by 
the investigation would be taken on board.  He added that the Council’s 
Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee would be charged with 
reviewing progress made in relation to the recommendations and that Internal Audit 
would monitor compliance in six months’ time.  He proposed that the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee be asked to carry out work on how projects were monitored.  
 
The Chief Executive stated that there would be no impact on the services provided 
to residents or the Council Tax levied; as a result of this overspend. 
 
The Leader of the Council also apologised to residents and stated that they, and 
the Councillors and staff had been badly let down.  He reiterated that the 
overspend would not impact on front-line services or Council Tax.  The 
investigations had been open and transparent.  
 
The Leader added that he had kept the Chairmen of the Governance, Audit and 
Risk Management and the Overview and Scrutiny Committees, including the 
Leader of the Opposition, fully informed throughout.  He did not want to score party 
political points about this matter.  However, in case anyone did want to, for the 
record, these problems had not occurred on his ‘watch’.  The Leader stated that the 
Council needed to learn from its mistakes to ensure that such a situation never 
occurred again.  
 

Agenda Item 9a 
Pages 9 to 10 

9



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\5\8\AI00069851\$fg21w3sq.doc 

RESOLVED:  That  
 

(1) the report and the actions already being taken be noted; 
 

(2) the Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee be requested 
to monitor and report on the implementation of the recommendations 
within agreed timescales; 
 

(3) the Overview and Scrutiny Committee carry out development work on how 
the Council monitored its projects. 

 
Reason for Decision:  To understand the issues in the Council’s Capital 
Programme and their impact going forward. 

 
 

FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
 
Background Documents: 

 
Report considered by Cabinet held on 15 December 2010. 
 
Minutes of Cabinet held on 15 December 2010. 

 
Contact Officer:  
 
Daksha Ghelani, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Tel:  020 8424 1881 
Email:  daksha.ghelani@harrow.gov.uk 

 
 

10



 
 

 

REPORT FOR: 
 

Governance, Audit & Risk 
Management Committee 

Date of Meeting:  
19 January 2011 

 
Subject: 
 

 
Capital Programme 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Hugh Peart, Director of Legal & 
Governance Services 

 
Exempt: 
 

 
No 
 

Enclosures: 
 

Implementation grid 

 
 
Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
 
This report sets out how the Council is responding to recommendations in the 
report to December Cabinet about its capital programme. 
 
Recommendations:  
The Committee is requested to: 
Endorse the suggested way of monitoring & reporting the implementation of 
those recommendations; and 
Agree to receive further reports at its next meeting on progress of both 
implementing the recommendations and the Governance Review.    
 

 

Agenda Item 9b 
Pages 11 to 24 

11



Section 2 – Report 
 
Background  
In December 2010 Cabinet received a report setting out issues in the 
Council’s capital programme.  Attached to that report were the outcomes of 2 
investigations, one focussed on project management, one on financial 
management.  
 
In addition to making various findings, the investigations made a series of 
recommendations, to avoid any recurrence of the issues which had affected 
the programme.  
 
The recommendations were forwarded to the appropriate Corporate Directors, 
with instructions to implement them.  Cabinet requested that this Committee 
monitor and report on implementation, supported by Internal Audit, who have 
been instructed to independently verify the process. 
 
 
Current situation 
Recommendations 
All the recommendations have been collated and grouped together, and are 
set out in appendix 1.   
 
The Director of Legal & Governance Services is working with Internal Audit on 
a programme to ensure that: 
each recommendation is owned by a Corporate Director; 
there is an agreed priority rating and timescale for each;  
attention is given to the highest priority areas; and  
all recommendations are implemented as quickly as possible.   
 
As will be apparent from the attached grid, the above process is partly 
complete, and some actions have been completed already. 
 
It is planned that a full report will be presented to this Committee’s meeting in 
March, setting out progress against each recommendation.  This will include 
Internal Audit’s review of progress, and should issues remain outstanding, the 
Committee’s views will be sought as to how they can be resolved.  
 
Governance Review 
Given the issues identified in the investigations, the Director of Legal & 
Governance Services has commissioned a comprehensive review of the 
Council’s Assurance framework.  
 
Initially this is charting all processes from which assurance is derived in what 
is a complex organisation.  This ranges from individual 1-2-1’s between a 
manager and a member of their staff, to formal reporting requirements.  
 
Once charting is complete, suggestions will be made as to how the processes 
may be simplified and streamlined, to ensure consistent application and 
personal accountability.  These will then be tested against the capital 
programme issues to ensure, so far as possible, that they could not recur.  
 

12



The charting and initial suggestions will be reported to this Committee’s 
meeting in March, for its input into how the Council’s Governance framework 
should develop in future.        
 
 
Financial Implications 
Whilst the recommendations may have implications for the Directorates 
involved, the processes set out in this report can be supported within existing 
resources.   
 
 
Risk Management Implications 
Given that the recommendations arise from issues which were material in the 
problems identified in the December Cabinet report, the Council is exposed to 
some risk so long as they remain outstanding.  Accordingly the Corporate 
Strategy Board is closely monitoring the situation, in addition to the steps 
outlined above.  
 
Overall this is considered sufficient to manage the current risks. 
 
  

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 
 
 

   
Name: Myfanwy Barrett X  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: 6th January 2011 

   
 
 

   
Name: Hugh Peart X  Monitoring Officer 
 
Date: 7th January 2011 

   
 

 
 
Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
 
Contact:  Hugh Peart, Director of Legal & Governance Services 020 84242 
1287 
 
Background Papers:   
Report to Cabinet dated 15th December 2010 
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/www2/mgConvert2Pdf.aspx?ID=12066&T=9  

13



14

This page is intentionally left blank



 
1

DR
AF

T 

 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N 

PL
AN

 
  

Ite
m 

No
  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Pr

ior
ity

 
rat

ing
 

Pla
nn

ed
 ac

tio
n /

 re
sp

on
se

 
Im

ple
me

nta
tio

n 
da

te 
Le

ad
 

Of
fic

er 
 

Cu
rre

nt 
St

atu
s 

Sp
ec

ific
 Pr

oje
ct 

Ta
sk

s 
1. 

 
Th

e C
hie

f E
xe

cu
tiv
e a

nd
 D
ire

cto
r o

f H
um

an
 R
es

ou
rce

s 
sh

ou
ld 

de
ter

mi
ne

 w
he

the
r a

ny
 co

nd
uc

t in
ve

sti
ga

tio
ns

 
are

 w
arr

an
ted

.  
 

 Hig
h 

 Re
vie

w 
ev

ide
nc

e c
oll

ec
ted

 du
rin

g 
inv

es
tig

ati
on

 an
d a

dv
ise

 lin
e m

an
ag

ers
  

 De
c 2

01
0 

 JT
 

 Co
mp

let
e 

2. 
 

Re
cru

it a
n i

nd
ivid

ua
l to

 ta
ke

 ov
er 

the
 m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f th

e 
ch

ild
ren

’s 
se

rvi
ce

s c
ap

ita
l p

rog
ram

me
, s

ett
ing

 up
 pr

op
er 

sy
ste

ms
 of

 co
ntr

ol 
an

d m
an

ag
em

en
t a

s w
ell
 as

 
ide

nti
fyi

ng
 is

su
es

 on
 ot

he
r s

ch
em

es
.  

 

  Hig
h 

 
 

  CD
 

 

3. 
 

Inv
es

tig
ate

 w
he

the
r th

ere
 is

 an
y r

ed
res

s f
or 

the
 

es
ca

lat
ing

 co
sts

 of
 th

e t
em

po
rar

y s
ch

oo
l.  

 
 Me

d 
 

 
 BH

 
 

4. 
 

Re
vis

it t
he

 va
lue

 fo
r m

on
ey

 as
se

ss
me

nts
 fo

r th
e 

rev
iew

ed
 pr

oje
cts

.  
 

 Lo
w 

 Re
vie

w 
the

 ex
ist
ing

 as
se

ss
me

nts
 an

d 
co

mm
en

t a
cc

ord
ing

ly 
 

 Fe
b 2

01
1 

 MB
 

 

5. 
 

Ch
ec

k t
ha

t th
e C

ou
nc

il h
as

 co
mp

lie
d w

ith
 th

e g
ran

t 
co

nd
itio

ns
 an

d i
s n

ot 
ca

rry
ing

 an
y r

isk
 fro

m 
ha

vin
g 

wa
ive

d t
he

 co
ntr

ibu
tio

n f
rom

 th
e c

hu
rch

 sc
ho

ols
 

 

 Lo
w 

 All
 gr

an
t fu

nd
ing

 ha
s b

ee
n r

ev
iew

ed
 

 De
c 2

01
0 

 MB
 

 Co
mp

let
e 

Co
ntr

ac
t M

an
ag

em
en

t 
6. 

 
A c

lea
r a

pp
rov

al 
da

te 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 in

clu
de

d w
ith

in 
the

 
Ga

tew
ay

 do
cu

me
nta

tio
n. 

 Lo
w 

Th
e c

om
mi

ss
ion

ing
 fo

rm
 in

co
rpo

rat
ed

 
wit

hin
 th

e G
ate

wa
y d

oc
um

en
tat

ion
, 

inc
lus

ive
 of

 G
ate

wa
y 0

, 1
, 2

 or
 an

y 
rev

isio
ns

 so
 pr

es
en

ted
 fo

r a
pp

rov
al 

wit
hin

 de
leg

ate
d a

uth
ori

ty 
sh

ou
ld 

inc
lud

e 
ap

pro
va

l d
ate

. 

 De
c 2

01
0 

 BH
 

 

7. 
 

Th
e I

ns
tru

cti
ng

 D
ep

art
me

nt 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 re

qu
ire

d t
o 

au
tho

riz
e a

ll p
roj

ec
t G

ate
wa

ys
 

 Hig
h 

Re
vis

ion
 to

 G
ate

wa
y 0

,1a
nd

 2 
sig

n o
ff 

pa
ge

 to
 in

clu
de

 Bu
dg

et 
Ho

lde
r’s

 
sig

na
tur

e t
ha

t is
 to

 be
 so

ug
ht 

in 
ad

va
nc

e 
of 

su
bm

iss
ion

 to
 H
oS

 or
 D
ire

cto
r. 

 De
c 2

01
0 

 BH
 

 

8. 
 

An
y s

ub
se

qu
en

t re
vis

ion
s t

o t
he

 G
ate

wa
y 

do
cu

me
nta

tio
n s

ho
uld

 be
 co

mp
let

ed
 th

rou
gh

 th
e u

se
 of

 
a d

ed
ica

ted
 re

vis
ion

 fo
rm

 th
at 

do
cu

me
nts

 th
e n

ee
d f

or 
the

 re
vis

ion
 an

d t
he

 co
st 

an
d s

ch
ed

ule
 im

pli
ca

tio
ns

 

 Me
d 

Th
e p

roj
ec

t C
ore

 G
rou

p s
ha

ll r
ev

iew
 

Ch
an

ge
 In

str
uc

tio
ns

 w
he

re 
ag

ree
d 

Pr
ov

isio
na

l S
um

s a
re 

to 
be

 ex
pe

nd
ed

 
wit

hin
 th

e A
gre

ed
 M

ax
im

um
 Pr

ice
, 

 Ja
n 2

01
1 

 BH
 

 

15



 
2

DR
AF

T 

pa
rtic

ula
rly

 th
is 
is 
to 

co
ntr

ol 
PS

 th
at 

are
 

alr
ea

dy
 co

mm
itte

d a
nd

 w
he

re 
fur

the
r 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re 
wo

uld
 lik

ely
 ta

ke
 co

ntr
ac

tua
l 

co
mm

itm
en

ts 
be

yo
nd

 ap
pro

ve
d G

ate
wa

y 
lim

its
. 

9. 
 

It s
ho

uld
 be

 en
su

red
 th

at 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 co

ntr
ac

tua
l 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
 ha

ve
 be

en
 es

tab
lish

ed
 pr

ior
 to

 an
y p

roj
ec

t 
wo

rk 
ac

tua
lly 

co
mm

en
cin

g. 
 Hig

h 
Pr
oc

es
s r

eit
era

tio
n o

f in
str

uc
tio

n t
o a

ll 
sta

ff r
em

ind
ing

 th
e C

lie
nt 

Re
pre

se
nta

tiv
e 

tha
t P

re 
Po

ss
es

sio
n A

gre
em

en
ts 

or 
sim

ila
r c

on
tra

ct 
do

cu
me

nts
 ca

nn
ot
 be

 
iss

ue
d t

o t
he

 co
ns

tru
cto

r u
nle

ss
 th

e 
ap

pro
ve

d G
ate

wa
y 0

, 1
 or

 2 
is 
in 

pla
ce

. 
Pr
oc

es
s k

no
wn

 by
 st

aff
 an

d i
n p

lac
e. 

Co
re 

Gr
ou

ps
 to

 al
ign

 ap
pro

va
l le

ad
 in

 
tim

e t
o p

roj
ec

t ti
me

tab
le.

 

 De
c 2

01
0 

 BH
 

 

10
.  

Th
e G

ate
wa

y 2
 do

cu
me

nta
tio

n s
ho

uld
 in

clu
de

 a 
pro

vis
ion

al 
su

m 
for

 w
ork

s t
o b

e c
om

ple
ted

 di
rec

tly
 by

 th
e 

Co
un

cil 
an

d a
pp

rop
ria

te 
co

nti
ng

en
cy

 fo
r a

ny
 ris

ks
 

tra
ns

fer
red

 to
 th

e C
ou

nc
il. 

 Hig
h 

An
y a

nd
 al

l P
rov

isio
na

l S
um

s m
us

t b
e 

ide
nti

fie
d w

ith
in 

the
 pr

oje
ct 

co
st 

pla
n a

nd
 

the
 AM

P w
ith

in 
Ga

tew
ay

 2.
 

A p
roj

ec
t ri

sk
 re

gis
ter

 ex
ist
s a

nd
 is

 
im

ple
me

nte
d t

o i
de

nti
fy 

Cli
en

t o
r 

Co
ns

tru
cto

r ri
sk

 ite
ms

. T
he

 C
ore

 G
rou

p 
wit

h B
ud

ge
t H

old
er 

inp
ut 

wil
l b

e a
sk

ed
 to

 
ag

ree
 ex

pe
nd

itu
re 

ag
ain

st 
the

 AM
P 

ad
jus

tm
en

t o
f P

rov
isio

na
l S

um
s. 

W
ith

 
ag

ree
me

nt 
in 

pla
ce

, u
nd

er 
the

 co
ntr

ac
t 

the
 C
lie
nt 

Re
pre

se
nta

tiv
e’s

 sh
all
 is
su

e a
 

Ch
an

ge
 In

str
uc

tio
n a

uth
ori

za
tio

n s
uc

h 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re.

 

 De
c 2

01
0 

 BH
 

 

11
.  

Th
e c

ha
ng

e o
rde

r a
uth

ori
sa

tio
n p

roc
ed

ure
 sh

ou
ld 

be
 

ap
pro

pri
ate

ly 
us

ed
 on

 al
l p

roj
ec

ts,
 in

clu
din

g f
orm

al 
ac

ce
pta

nc
e b

y t
he

 in
str

uc
tin

g p
art

y. 
 

 

 Hig
h 

Re
ma

ins
 su

bje
ct 

to 
fur

the
r p

roc
es

s 
rev

iew
s t

o f
ull

y m
ee

t th
is 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

 
 On

go
ing

 
 BH

 
 

12
.  

It s
ho

uld
 be

 en
su

red
 th

at 
all
 ch

an
ge

 or
de

rs 
ins

tru
cte

d b
y 

Sc
ho

ols
 ar

e c
oll

ate
d a

nd
 re

ch
arg

ed
 w
he

re 
ap

pro
pri

ate
.  

 
 Me

d 
Sc

ho
ols

 in
str

uc
tio

ns
 ar

e n
ot 

co
ntr

ac
tua

lly 
rec

og
nis

ed
 if 

the
y a

re 
no

t th
e C

lie
nt.

 
Re

vie
w 
pro

ce
ss

 to
 en

su
re 

an
y c

ha
ng

es
 

or 
va

ria
tio

n t
o t

he
 w
ork

s r
eq

uir
ed

 by
 th

e 
sc

ho
ol 

are
 co

mm
un

ica
ted

 vi
a C

hil
dre

n’s
 

Se
rvi

ce
s t

ha
t s

ha
ll; 

• 
Co

nfi
rm

 re
vis

ion
 to

 br
ief

 
• 

Co
nfi

rm
 bu

dg
et 

av
ail

ab
ility

 
• 

Ad
op

t C
ha

ng
e o

rde
r p

roc
es

s i
n 

reg
ard

s t
o; 

1. 
co

ntr
ac

tor
s p

rop
os

al 
co

st 

 Ja
n 2

01
1  

 BH
 

 

16



 
3

DR
AF

T 

2. 
va

lue
 en

gin
ee

rin
g 

be
tw
ee

n c
on

str
uc

tor
 an

d 
the

 C
os

t C
on

su
lta

nt 
3. 

ag
ree

 ch
an

ge
 in

str
uc

tio
n 

wit
h C

hil
dre

n’s
 Se

rvi
ce

s 
an

d c
os

t c
od

e f
or 

wo
rk 

to 
be

 ch
arg

ed
 to

 
(in

clu
din

g 
int

ern
al/

ex
ter

na
l fe

es
) 

Cli
en

t R
ep

res
en

tat
ive

 is
su

es
 in

str
uc

tio
n 

un
de

r T
PC

 /P
PC

 co
ntr

ac
t to

 th
e 

co
ns

tru
cto

r. 
13

.  
An

 in
ter

na
l p

roj
ec

t c
om

ple
tio

n p
roc

ed
ure

 sh
ou

ld 
be

 
es

tab
lish

ed
 w
hic

h r
eq

uir
es

 th
e a

uth
ori

za
tio

n o
f th

e 
ins

tru
cti
ng

 de
pa

rtm
en

t p
rio

r to
 Pr

op
ert

y S
erv

ice
s 

for
ma

lly 
sig

nin
g o

ff p
roj

ec
ts.

  
 

 Me
d 

Re
vis

ion
 of

 pr
oc

es
s t

o i
nc

lud
e a

s p
art

 of
 

the
 pr

oje
ct 

Co
re 

Gr
ou

p f
un

cti
on

, to
 jo

int
ly 

sig
n o

ff t
he

 pr
oje

ct 
an

d t
o a

gre
e a

s t
he

 
Int

ere
ste

d P
art

y u
nd

er 
the

 co
ntr

ac
t th

e 
ou

tco
me

 of
 th

e c
on

str
uc

tor
s 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 In

dic
ato

r. 

 Ja
n 2

01
1 

 BH
 

 

14
.  

An
 up

 to
 da

te 
ris

k r
eg

ist
er 

sh
ou

ld 
be

 m
ain

tai
ne

d 
thr

ou
gh

ou
t a

ll p
roj

ec
ts 

& s
ch

em
es

.  
.   

 Hig
h 

Re
vie

w 
of 

ris
k r

eg
ist
er 

to 
be

 ca
rrie

d o
ut 

as
 pa

rt o
f th

e C
ore

 G
rou

p a
ge

nd
a. 

 
 De

c 2
01

0 
 BH

 
 

15
.  

Ad
op

t a
 co

ns
ist
en

t p
roj

ec
t fi

lin
g s

ys
tem

 fo
r p

ap
ers

 & 
ele

ctr
on

ic 
rec

ord
s i

n C
&E

 
 Lo

w 
Im

ple
me

nt 
rev

isio
n o

f G
ate

wa
y 

do
cu

me
nt 

ch
an

ge
s. 

 Pu
t in

 pl
ac

e f
urt

he
r s

taf
f tr

ain
ing

 to
 

en
su

re 
Ga

tew
ay

, c
on

tra
ct 

do
cu

me
nta

tio
n 

pro
ce

ss
es

 ar
e a

do
pte

d i
n a

 un
ifo

rm
 an

d 
co

ns
ist
en

t m
an

ne
r. 

 

Ja
n 2

01
1 

 BH
 

 

Fin
an

cia
l M

an
ag

em
en

t 
16

.  
Re

vie
w 
the

 pr
oc

es
s f

or 
iss

uin
g c

od
es

.  
 

Hig
h 

Th
e p

roc
es

s h
as

 be
en

 re
vie

we
d a

nd
 is
 in

 
pla

ce
 

Ja
n 2

01
1  

MB
 

Co
mp

let
e 

17
.  

Re
vie

w,
 cl
ari

fy 
an

d c
om

mu
nic

ate
 ho

w 
co

ntr
ac

ts 
an

d 
ca

pit
al 

sc
he

me
s s

ho
uld

 be
 co

mm
itte

d w
ith

in 
SA

P. 
 

 
 Me

d 
All

 ca
pit

al 
sc

he
me

 m
an

ag
ers

 ha
ve

 be
en

 
pro

vid
ed

 w
ith

 re
fre

sh
er 

tra
ini
ng

 an
d 

rem
ind

ed
 of

 th
e n

ee
d t

o r
ais

e p
urc

ha
se

 
ord

ers
 in

 SA
P i

n a
dv

an
ce

 of
 an

y w
ork

 
co

mm
en

cin
g. 

 Fu
rth

er 
tra

ini
ng

 an
d 

gu
ida

nc
e w

ill b
e p

rov
ide

d. 

 Ja
n 2

01
1 

 MB
 

 

18
.  

Th
e m

on
ito

rin
g s

ys
tem

 sh
ou

ld 
pro

vid
e f

or 
the

 fa
cili

ty:
  

to 
all
oc

ate
 th

e b
ud

ge
t a

cro
ss

 ke
y h

ea
din

gs
, w

hic
h w

ill 
pro

vid
e m

ore
 in

for
ma

tio
n f

or 
bu

dg
et 

mo
nit

ori
ng

 an
d 

co
ntr

ol 
pu

rpo
se

s; 

 Lo
w 

SA
P h

as
 be

en
 am

en
de

d t
o a

llo
w 
the

 us
e 

of 
su

b-c
od

es
 fo

r c
ap

ita
l s
ch

em
es

 to
 ai

d 
mo

nit
ori

ng
. 

 

 Ja
nu

ary
 20

11
 

  

 MB
 

 Pa
rtia

lly 
co

mp
let

e 

17



 
4

DR
AF

T 

to 
sh

ow
 th

e s
ch

em
es

’ b
ud

ge
t a

cro
ss

 fin
an

cia
l y
ea

rs 
fro

m 
inc

ep
tio

n, 
in 

ord
er 

to 
ha

ve
 a 

co
mp

let
e o

ve
rvi

ew
 of

 a 
sc

he
me

 bo
th 

ap
pro

ve
d b

ud
ge

t a
nd

 co
sts

 in
cu

rre
d 

 

It i
s p

os
sib

le 
to 

sh
ow

 sc
he

me
 bu

dg
ets

 
ac

ros
s f

ina
nc

ial
 ye

ars
 in

 SA
P. 

 Th
e 

ca
bin

et 
rep

ort
 on

 th
e 2

01
1-1

2 t
o 2

01
5-1

6 
ca

pit
al 

pro
gra

mm
e w

ill s
ho

w 
sc

he
me

 
bu

dg
ets

 ac
ros

s y
ea

rs 
wh

ere
 in

for
ma

tio
n 

is 
av

ail
ab

le.
  M

on
ito

rin
g r

ep
ort

s a
re 

be
ing

 al
ter

ed
 to

 in
clu

de
 pr

e y
ea

r, c
urr

en
t 

an
d f

utu
re 

ye
ar 

sp
en

d. 

 Op
era

tiv
e 

Mo
nit

ori
ng

 re
po

rt 
ch

an
ge

s  
Se

pt 
20

11
 (q

ua
rte

r 1
) 

19
.  

Co
ns

ide
r th

e c
os

t b
en

efi
t o

f b
ein

g a
ble

 to
 pr

ofi
le 

the
 

bu
dg

et 
ac

ros
s q

ua
rte

rs 
– t

his
 w
ill e

na
ble

 th
e f

ina
nc

ial
 

inf
orm

ati
on

 to
 be

 in
teg

rat
ed

 w
ith

 th
e c

as
hfl

ow
 w
ith

in 
the

 
AM

P a
nd

 pr
ov

ide
 in

for
ma

tio
n f

or 
tre

as
ury

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pu
rpo

se
s. 

 
 

 Lo
w 

 Fu
rth

er 
wo

rk 
is 
req

uir
ed

 to
 in

ve
sti

ga
te 

 
ho

w 
thi

s p
roc

es
s c

an
 be

 im
ple

me
nte

d o
n 

SA
P 

 
 MB

 
 

20
.  

Co
ns

ide
r p

utt
ing

 in
 pl

ac
e s

om
e c

he
ck

s a
nd

 ba
lan

ce
s 

ba
se

d o
n s

uc
h t

hin
gs

 as
:  

Ex
ce

pti
on

 re
po

rts
, w

he
re 

pu
rch

as
e o

rde
rs 

are
 de

clin
ed

 
for

 in
su

ffic
ien

t b
ud

ge
ts,

 so
 th

at 
Fin

an
ce

 ca
n u

se
 th

es
e a

t 
mo

nth
ly 
mo

nit
ori

ng
 m

ee
tin

gs
 an

d a
ler

t s
en

ior
 m

an
ag

ers
;  

Ex
ce

pti
on

 re
po

rts
 w
he

re 
the

 pu
rch

as
e o

rde
r d

ate
 is
 th

e 
sa

me
 as

 or
 af

ter
 th

e i
nv

oic
e d

ate
;  

Re
po

rts
 on

 bl
oc

ke
d i

nv
oic

es
;  

Re
vie

ws
 of

 tra
ns

fer
s; 

an
d  

A r
eq

uir
em

en
t to

 co
mp

let
e a

 po
st 

co
mp

let
ion

 re
po

rt o
nc

e 
the

 bu
dg

et 
ha

s b
ee

n f
ull

y c
om

mi
tte

d. 
 

 

 Lo
w 

Re
mi

nd
ers

 ha
ve

 al
rea

dy
 be

en
 is
su

ed
 to

 
all
 SA

P u
se

rs 
on

 th
e i

mp
ort

an
tce

 of
 

rai
sin

g p
urc

ha
se

 or
de

rs 
in 

ad
va

nc
e. 

 Co
ntr

ols
 on

 ex
pe

nd
itu

re 
to 

be
 re

vie
we

d 
for

 ef
fic

ac
y i
n c

on
tro

llin
g b

ud
ge

ts.
 

 As
 pa

rt o
f th

e p
roc

ure
me

nt 
pro

jec
t, 

ad
dit

ion
al 

ch
ec

ks
 an

d c
on

tro
ls 

wil
l b

e p
ut 

in 
pla

ce
 in

 re
lat

ion
 to

 pu
rch

as
e o

rde
rs.

 

 Co
mp

lia
nc

e 
sy
ste

ms
 to

 be
 

de
ve

lop
ed

 du
rin

g 
20

11
-12

 

 MB
 

 

21
.  

W
he

re 
pro

jec
tio

ns
 ar

e n
ot 

pro
vid

ed
 by

 bu
dg

et 
ho

lde
rs,

 
thi

s s
ho

uld
 be

 es
ca

lat
ed

 an
d b

e p
res

en
ted

 as
 “b

ud
ge

t 
ho

lde
r h

as
 no

t p
rov

ide
d a

 pr
oje

cti
on

”.  
 

 Lo
w 

 Ag
ree

d 
 Ja

n 2
01

1 
 MB

 
 Co

mp
let

e 

22
.  

A s
ing

le 
Ma

ste
r c

od
e s

ho
uld

 be
 es

tab
lish

ed
 fo

r e
ac

h 
pro

jec
t w

ith
 ap

pro
pri

ate
 su

b-c
od

es
 th

at 
all

ow
 an

 an
aly

sis
 

of 
su

b-c
ate

go
rie

s o
f c

os
ts 

as
 re

qu
ire

d. 
 Hig

h 
To

 ef
fec

t th
is 
the

 C
ap

ita
l S

ch
em

e m
us

t 
be

 co
ns

tru
cte

d t
o s

ho
w 
all
 re

lev
an

t 
fun

din
g s

tre
am

s  
an

d t
he

re 
mu

st 
be

 a 
tra

ns
pa

ren
t p

roc
es

s t
o s

ho
w 
 ho

w 
thi

s 
ha

s b
ee

n a
uth

ori
ze

d a
nd

 ag
ree

d. 
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 fo

rm
 to

 re
co

rd 
Ma

ste
r 

an
d s

ub
-co

de
s f

or 
the

 pr
oje

ct.
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 pr

o-f
orm

a t
o b

e s
ign

ed
 

by
 Bu

dg
et 

Ho
lde

r to
 ve

rify
 co

de
 an

d 
bu

dg
et 

am
ou

nt(
s).

 
Bu

dg
et 

am
ou

nts
 to

 be
 cl
ea

r o
n i

nc
lus

ive
 

 Ja
n 2

01
1 

 MB
 

 

18



 
5

DR
AF

T 

or 
ex

clu
siv

e o
f fe

es
 (b

oth
 in

ter
na

l a
nd

 
ex

ter
na

l). 
23

.  
Co

mp
reh

en
siv

e a
nd

 co
nte

mp
ora

ne
ou

s p
roj

ec
t fi

na
nc

e 
rep

ort
s s

ho
uld

 be
 pr

od
uc

ed
 fo

r a
ll p

roj
ec

ts 
wh

ich
 

sp
ec

ific
all

y d
eta

il b
ud

ge
ted

 co
st,

 ac
tua

l c
os

t to
 da

te,
 

co
mm

itte
d c

os
ts 

an
d a

 
for

ec
as

t o
utt

urn
. It

 sh
ou

ld 
be

 en
su

red
 th

at 
su

ch
 re

po
rts

 
are

 ac
tiv
ely

 di
sc

us
se

d a
nd

 co
ns

ide
red

 at
 co

re 
pro

jec
t 

me
eti

ng
s a

s a
 m

att
er 

of 
co

urs
e. 

 
 

 Hig
h 

En
su

re 
the

 us
e o

f p
roj

ec
t c

as
h f

low
 – 

to 
be

 pr
od

uc
ed

 by
 th

e c
on

str
uc

tor
 th

at 
ali
gn

s w
ith

 th
e p

roj
ec

t p
rog

ram
me

 an
d i

s 
rev

iew
ed

 as
 pa

rt o
f; 

1. 
Th

e p
roj

ec
t C

ore
 G

rou
p a

ge
nd

a 
2. 

Pr
es

en
ted

 to
 th

e B
ud

ge
t H

old
er 

 
3. 

Us
e o

f S
AP

 to
 m

on
ito

r 
co

mm
itm

en
t a

nd
 sp

en
d f

rom
 

SA
P b

y t
he

 Bu
dg

et 
Ho

lde
r. 

4. 
Ca

pit
al 

Fo
rum

 
 

 De
c 2

01
0 

 MB
 

 

24
.  

Pr
oje

ct 
co

sts
 sh

ou
ld 

be
 co

de
d t

o t
he

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 pr
oje

ct 
co

de
.  

 
 Hig

h 
Th

e C
om

mi
ss

ion
ing

 fo
rm

s w
ill a

ss
ist
 th

e 
Cli

en
t to

 do
 th

is 
 

BH
 

 

25
.  

Th
e o

ve
ral

l p
rog

ram
me

, c
od

ing
 an

d m
on

ito
rin

g s
ho

uld
 

be
 fo

cu
se

d o
n s

ch
em

es
/pr

oje
cts

 ra
the

r th
an

 fu
nd

ing
 

str
ea

ms
.  

 

 Me
d 

Th
e c

ab
ine

t re
po

rt o
n t

he
 20

11
-12

 to
 

20
15

-16
 ca

pit
al 

pro
gra

mm
e w

ill s
ho

w 
tot

al 
sc

he
me

 bu
dg

ets
, a

nd
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

rep
ort

s w
ill r

ep
ort

 at
 sc

he
me

 le
ve

l  (
 

alr
ea

dy
 im

ple
me

nte
d).

 

Mo
nit

ori
ng

 re
po

rt 
ch

an
ge

s  
20

10
 -1

1 
(qu

art
er 

3) 
 MB

 
 

26
.  

Th
e c

ap
ita

l b
ud

ge
t m

on
ito

rin
g t

o m
em

be
rs 

sh
ou

ld 
pre

se
nt 

the
 w
ho

le 
pro

gra
mm

e a
cro

ss
 th

e f
ina

nc
ial
 ye

ars
 

of 
the

 ap
pro

ve
d p

rog
ram

me
, a

nd
 in

clu
de

 su
ffic

ien
t 

inf
orm

ati
on

 to
 fa

cili
tat

e p
rop

er 
ch

all
en

ge
 an

d s
cru

tin
y. 

 
 

 Me
d 

Th
e c

ab
ine

t re
po

rt o
n t

he
 20

11
-12

 to
 

20
15

-16
 ca

pit
al 

pro
gra

mm
e w

ill s
ho

w 
tot

al 
sc

he
me

 bu
dg

ets
, a

nd
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

rep
ort

s w
ill b

e e
nh

an
ce

d d
uri

ng
 20

11
-12

. 

Mo
nit

ori
ng

 re
po

rt 
ch

an
ge

s 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20

11
 

(qu
art

er 
1) 

CS
B f

rom
 Ap

ril 

 MB
 

 

27
.  

Re
vie

w 
all
 gr

an
ts 

sc
he

me
s b

ein
g d

ev
elo

pe
d o

r in
 th

e 
pip

eli
ne

 ha
vin

g r
eg

ard
 to

 fu
nd

ing
 ris

ks
, o

ng
oin

g r
ev

en
ue

 
im

pli
ca

tio
ns

 an
d g

ran
t c

on
dit

ion
s/p

en
alt

ies
. 

 

 
 

 
 CS

B 
 

Go
ve

rn
an

ce
 

28
.  

Th
e C

ou
nc

il s
ho

uld
 re

vie
w 
its
 co

ntr
ac

ts 
to 

en
su

re 
a 

co
mp

reh
en

siv
e u

nd
ers

tan
din

g. 
 Th

is 
wil

l e
ns

ure
 th

at 
the

 
Co

un
cil 

is 
ma

xim
isin

g t
he

 op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 to

 ac
hie

ve
 va

lue
 

for
 m

on
ey

.  

 Lo
w 

Th
is 
wa

s c
lea

rly
 se

t o
ut 

in 
Ca

bin
et 

rep
ort

s f
or 

bo
th 

pro
cu

rem
en

t o
f th

e K
ier

 
an

d A
po

llo
 an

d t
he

 Te
rm

s a
nd

 
Co

nd
itio

ns
 of

 th
e c

on
tra

ct 
ma

de
 

av
ail

ab
le 

to 
sta

ff. 
 

 De
c 2

01
0 

 BH
 

 co
mp

let
e 

29
.  

Re
vie

w 
the

 ex
pe

cta
tio

ns
 fro

m 
the

 St
rat

eg
ic 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 
Bo

ard
 an

d C
on

tra
ct 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Gr

ou
p, 

en
su

rin
g t

he
se

 
are

 fit
 fo

r p
urp

os
e a

nd
 th

eir
 ro

le 
cle

arl
y u

nd
ers

too
d 

wit
hin

 th
e o

rga
nis

ati
on

. A
 m

ore
 fo

rm
al 

mo
nit

or 
of 

all
 

pro
jec

ts 
us

ing
 ke

y i
nd

ica
tor

s s
ho

uld
 be

 us
ed

.  
 

 
 

 
 BH

 
 

19



 
6

DR
AF

T 

30
.  

Re
vie

w 
the

 op
era

tio
n a

nd
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f 
the

 Sp
ec

ial
 Pr

oje
cts

 Te
am

, in
clu

din
g: 

the
 ap

pli
ca

tio
n o

f 
cle

ar 
an

d c
on

sis
ten

t p
roc

ed
ure

s; 
for

ma
l re

po
rtin

g t
o t

he
 

clie
nt 

on
 a 

reg
ula

r b
as

is;
 an

d e
ns

uri
ng

 th
at 

the
re 

is 
an

 
ov

era
ll h

igh
 le

ve
l s
ch

ed
ule

 be
ing

 re
po

rte
d o

n k
ey

 
as

pe
cts

 of
 ea

ch
 pr

oje
ct 

an
d t

ha
t th

is 
is 
us

ed
 fo

r 
ex

ce
pti

on
 re

po
rtin

g a
nd

 di
sc

us
sio

n. 
 

 

 
 

 
 BH

 
 

31
.  

A c
lea

r g
ov

ern
an

ce
 st

ruc
tur

e a
nd

 ch
art

 of
 

res
po

ns
ibi
litie

s s
ho

uld
 be

 ag
ree

d f
or 

ea
ch

 pr
oje

ct 
ma

na
ge

d b
y C

&E
.  

 

 Hig
h 

Re
vie

w 
of 

the
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 G

ov
ern

an
ce

 
str

uc
tur

e 
Re

sp
on

sib
iliti

es
 to

 be
 cl
ea

rly
 de

fin
ed

 
wit

hin
 th

e s
tru

ctu
re.

 
 

Fe
b 2

01
1 

BH
 

 

32
.  

A r
ev

iew
 of

 th
e e

xis
tin

g d
oc

um
en

ted
 pr

oc
ed

ure
s w

ith
in 

C&
E s

ho
uld

 be
 un

de
rta

ke
n. 

 
 

 Me
d 

Up
on

 co
mp

let
ion

 of
 pr

oc
es

s r
ev

iew
 an

d 
im

ple
me

nta
tio

n o
f th

e i
mp

rov
em

en
ts 

rec
om

me
nd

ed
 un

de
r th

is 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
, a

 
fur

the
r In

ter
na

l A
ud

it c
an

 be
 sc

he
du

led
. 

It s
ho

uld
 be

 no
ted

 th
at 

the
 G

ate
wa

y 
pro

ce
ss

 w
as

 su
bje

ct 
to 

an
 In

ter
na

l A
ud

it 
rev

iew
 da

ted
 21

/07
/20

10
 w
ith

 
rec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s d

isc
ha

rge
d. 

 

 Fe
b 2

01
1 

 BH
 

 

33
.  

Re
vie

w 
wh

at 
is 
rep

ort
ed

 to
 m

em
be

rs 
& C

SB
, a

nd
 its

 
co

mp
let

en
es

s, 
rel

ev
an

ce
 an

d a
cc

es
sib

ility
. 

 
 Hig

h 
All

 di
rec

tor
ate

s t
o i

de
nti

fy 
pro

jec
ts,

 w
hic

h 
sh

ou
ld:

 
fol

low
 th

e p
roj

ec
t m

an
ag

em
en

t to
olk

it &
 

be
 re

po
rte

d t
o I

mp
rov

em
en

t B
oa

rd,
 & 

the
rea

fte
r, i

f a
pp

rop
ria

te 
to 

CS
B &

 
Ca

bin
et 

   

 Ja
n 2

01
1 

 CS
B 

 

34
.  

Co
ns

ide
r th

e f
utu

re 
rol

es
 of

 In
ter

na
l A

ud
it &

 th
e 

Ov
erv

iew
 & 

Sc
rut

iny
 C
om

mi
tte

e i
n m

on
ito

rin
g w

ha
t is

 
rep

ort
ed

 to
 C
SB

 an
d M

em
be

rs.
  

 

 
 Int

ern
al 

au
dit

 to
 re

vie
w 
33

 ab
ov

e, 
inv

olv
ing

 O
&S

 as
 ap

pro
pri

ate
 

 Fe
b 2

01
1 

 MB
 

 

35
.  

Re
vie

w 
the

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 go
ve

rna
nc

e s
tru

ctu
re 

to 
en

su
re 

tha
t m

em
be

r ti
me

 is
 fo

cu
ss
ed

 on
 pr

ior
ity
 ar

ea
s. 

 
  

 
 Un

de
rta

ke
 co

mp
reh

en
siv

e 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e/a

ss
ura

nc
e r

ev
iew

, fo
r 

co
ns

ide
rat

ion
 by

 C
SB

 & 
Ca

bin
et 

 

 Ap
ril 

20
11

  
 HP

 
 

36
.  

As
su

re 
its
elf

 th
at 

the
 cu

rre
nt 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 ar
ran

ge
me

nt 
de

live
rs 

va
lue

 fo
r m

on
ey

, h
av

ing
 re

ga
rd 

to 
all

 th
e c

os
ts 

inc
urr

ed
 in

 th
is 
arr

an
ge

me
nt 

an
d t

he
 w
ay

 th
at 

the
 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 is
 op

era
ted

.  
 

 
 

 
 BH

 
 

37
.  

Re
vie

w 
pro

jec
t g

ov
ern

an
ce

 st
ruc

tur
es

 w
ith

 its
 

 
 

 
 

 

20



 
7

DR
AF

T 

Co
ns

tru
cti

on
 Pa

rtn
er 

to 
en

su
re 

the
se

 ar
e c

on
cis

e a
nd

 
cle

ar,
 m

ak
ing

 an
y n

ec
es

sa
ry 

ch
an

ge
s t

o a
gre

ed
 

do
cu

me
nta

tio
n a

s a
 re

su
lt. 

Th
is 
sh

ou
ld 

co
mp

lem
en

t th
e 

ex
pe

cta
tio

ns
 w
ith

in 
the

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 go
ve

rna
nc

e f
ram

ew
ork

.  
 

BH
 

38
.  

Cr
ea

te 
an

 ex
em

pti
on

 pr
oc

es
s w

ith
 se

nio
r m

an
ag

em
en

t 
sig

n o
ff f

or 
wh

en
 ag

ree
d p

roc
es

se
s a

re 
no

t b
ein

g 
fol

low
ed

 du
e t

o p
rac

tic
ali
tie

s i
n d

eli
ve

ry 
e.g

. s
tar

tin
g o

n 
sit
e. 

 
 

 
 

 
 BH

 
 

39
.  

Cle
arl

y s
et 

ou
t &

 re
co

nc
ile
 w
ith

 th
e f

ina
nc

ial
 re

gu
lat

ion
s 

the
 au

tho
rity

 to
 si

gn
 pr

ep
os

se
ss

ion
 ag

ree
me

nts
, a

gre
e 

an
d s

ign
 AM

P d
oc

um
en

ts,
 an

d i
ss

ue
 br

ief
s a

nd
 bu

dg
et 

co
de

s. 
 

 

 Me
d 

Sc
he

me
 of

 de
leg

ati
on

 to
 be

 re
vis

ed
 an

d 
rei

ss
ue

d t
o c

ap
tur

e t
he

se
 ac

tiv
itie

s. 
 

En
su

re 
Fin

an
cia

l P
roc

ed
ure

s t
o s

up
po

rt 
the

 en
d t

o e
nd

 pr
oc

es
s a

re 
iss

ue
d w

hic
h 

su
pp

ort
 th

e F
ina

nc
ial
 R
eg

ula
tio

ns
. 

 Ma
r 2

01
1 

 MB
 

 

40
.  

Inc
orp

ora
te 

int
o t

he
 Fi

na
nc

ial
 R
eg

ula
tio

ns
 co

ntr
ac

t 
au

tho
ris

ati
on

 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 in

 re
lat

ion
 to

 th
e 

Co
ns

tru
cti

on
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
.  

 

 Me
d 

 Fu
ll r

ev
iew

 of
 fin

an
cia

l re
gu

lat
ion

s t
o b

e 
ca

rrie
d o

ut 
– t

o b
e r

ep
ort

ed
 to

 C
ab

ine
t in

 
Ma

y. 
 Fu

ll C
ou

nc
il a

pp
rov

al 
req

uir
ed

 in
 

Ju
ly.
 

 Ju
ly 
20

11
 

 MB
  

 

41
.  

Th
e c

lie
nt 

se
rvi

ce
 de

pa
rtm

en
t s

ho
uld

 au
tho

ris
e t

he
 

Ga
tew

ay
 an

d a
ny

 ot
he

r c
om

mi
tm

en
ts 

be
ing

 m
ad

e o
n 

the
ir b

eh
alf

.  
 

 
 

 
BH

 
 

42
.  

Cle
arl

y s
et 

ou
t w

ith
in 

the
 C
ou

nc
il’s

 G
ov

ern
an

ce
 

do
cu

me
nts

, th
e a

rra
ng

em
en

ts 
for

 ag
ree

ing
 th

e d
eta

ils 
of 

the
 C
ap

ita
l P

rog
ram

me
 at

 sc
he

me
 an

d p
roj

ec
t le

ve
l e

.g.
 

Ca
bin

et,
 Po

rtfo
lio
 or

 D
ire

cto
r d

ec
isio

n. 
 

 
 

 Ma
y 2

01
1  

  HP
  

 

43
.  

Co
mb

ine
 th

e s
ch

em
e i

de
nti

fic
ati

on
 an

d b
us

ine
ss

 ca
se

 
pro

ce
ss

es
 w
hic

h f
orm

 pa
rt o

f th
e c

ap
ita

l b
ud

ge
t 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
wit

h t
he

 G
ate

wa
y 1

 an
d 2

 pr
oc

es
se

s i
n 

ord
er 

to 
ha

ve
 an

 in
teg

rat
ed

 pr
oc

es
s t

ha
t: i

mp
rov

es
 co

st 
es

tim
ate

s, 
pro

vid
es

 fo
r fe

as
ibi
lity

 st
ud

ies
 w
he

re 
ap

pro
pri

ate
, a

vo
ids

 du
pli
ca

tio
n, 

an
d e

ns
ure

s t
ha

t th
ere

 is
 

a s
ing

le 
vie

w 
of 

the
 ov

era
ll b

ud
ge

t a
nd

 fu
nd

ing
 av

ail
ab

le 
an

d t
ha

t e
xp

en
dit

ure
 is

 ke
pt 

in 
lin
e w

ith
 th

is.
  

 

 
 

 
   TW

 

 

44
.  

Bu
sin

es
s c

as
es

 sh
ou

ld 
be

 re
qu

ire
d t

o i
nc

lud
e 

inf
orm

ati
on

 ab
ou

t th
e c

om
ple

te 
sc

he
me

, ir
res

pe
cti
ve

 of
 

fun
din

g, 
as

 w
ell

 as
 on

go
ing

 re
ve

nu
e i

mp
lica

tio
ns

. 
Co

ns
ide

rat
ion

 sh
ou

ld 
be

 gi
ve

n t
o c

om
ple

tin
g t

he
se

 pr
ior

 
to 

the
 C
ab

ine
t a

gre
ein

g t
he

 C
ap

ita
l P

rog
ram

me
 in

 or
de

r 
to 

inf
orm

 de
cis

ion
 m

ak
ing

.  

  Hig
h 

 
 

 TW
 

 

21



 
8

DR
AF

T 

 
45

.  
Th

e C
ap

ita
l P

rog
ram

me
 pr

oc
ed

ure
 no

tes
 to

 su
pp

ort
 th

e 
Fin

an
cia

l R
eg

ula
tio

ns
 ne

ed
 to

 be
 re

vie
we

d i
n t

he
 lig

ht 
of 

wh
at 

ha
s h

ap
pe

ne
d, 

to 
inc

lud
e r

ole
s a

nd
 re

sp
on

sib
iliti

es
 

an
d t

he
 ap

pro
va

l o
f v

ire
me

nts
. T

he
se

 pr
oc

ed
ure

s n
ote

s 
sh

ou
ld 

ma
ke

 as
 m

uc
h u

se
 of

 flo
wc

ha
rts

 as
 po

ss
ibl
e t

o 
en

su
re 

cla
rity

 an
d e

as
e o

f re
ad

ing
.  

 

 
Th

e C
ap

ita
l P

rog
ram

me
 pr

oc
ed

ure
 no

tes
 

wil
l b

e r
ev

ise
d a

nd
 re

iss
ue

d. 
 Ja

n 2
01

1 
 MB

 
 

46
.  

Ag
ree

 te
rm

s o
f re

fer
en

ce
 fo

r th
e C

ap
ita

l F
oru

m 
if i
t 

co
nti

nu
es

 to
 ex

ist
 al

on
g w

ith
 a 

cle
arl

y d
efi

ne
d c

orp
ora

te 
res

po
ns

ibi
lity

 an
d c

lar
ity
 as

 to
 th

e r
ole

 of
 at

ten
de

es
 an

d 
the

 C
ha

irm
an

.  
 

 
 

 
 CS

B 
 

47
.  

Re
vie

w 
me

mb
ers

hip
 of

 th
e F

oru
m 

to 
en

su
re 

it i
s 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 ha
vin

g r
eg

ard
 to

 th
e t

erm
s o

f re
fer

en
ce

.  
 

 
 

 
 CS

B 
 

48
.  

Th
e C

ap
ita

l F
oru

m 
sh

ou
ld 

co
ns

ide
r u

nd
ert

ak
ing

 de
tai

led
 

pro
jec

t re
vie

ws
 on

 a 
cy
clic

al 
ris

k b
as

ed
 ap

pro
ac

h h
av

ing
 

pa
rtic

ula
r re

ga
rd 

to 
rep

ha
se

d p
roj

ec
ts.

 Th
is 
sh

ou
ld 

co
ns

ide
r p

roj
ec

t m
ile
sto

ne
s. 

 
 

 
 

 
 CS

B &
 M

B 
 

49
.  

Th
e m

on
ito

rin
g s

ch
ed

ule
s s

ho
uld

 in
co

rpo
rat

e 
int

ell
ige

nc
e f

rom
 th

e c
as

h f
low

 an
d m

ile
sto

ne
s w

ith
in 

the
 

pro
jec

ts.
  

 

 Lo
w 

Mo
nit

ori
ng

 sc
he

du
les

 sh
ou

ld 
inc

lud
e 

co
mm

en
ts 

on
 ac

tua
l s
pe

nd
 to

 da
te 

an
d 

ac
hie

ve
me

nt 
of 

ke
y p

roj
ec

t m
ile
sto

ne
s. 

 
Mo

re 
wo

rk 
is 
req

uir
ed

 to
 un

de
rst

an
d t

he
 

res
ou

rce
s r

eq
uir

ed
 to

 su
pp

ort
 th

is 
an

d 
es

tab
lish

 a 
su

ita
ble

 pr
oc

ed
ure

. 
 

 tbc
 

 MB
 

 

50
.  

Th
ere

 ne
ed

s t
o b

e m
ore

 in
vo

lve
me

nt 
of 

se
nio

r 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

in 
ca

pit
al 

mo
nit

ori
ng

, w
hic

h a
t p

res
en

t 
ap

pe
ars

 fo
cu

se
d o

n t
he

 cl
ien

t s
erv

ice
 re

pre
se

nta
tiv
e, 

the
 

Ca
pit

al 
Fo

rum
 an

d C
ab

ine
t.  

 Th
ere

 sh
ou

ld 
be

 re
vie

ws
 at

 
bo

th 
de

pa
rtm

en
tal

 an
d c

orp
ora

te 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

lev
els

.  
 

  Hig
h 

 To
 be

 de
ve

lop
ed

 as
 pa

rt o
f 3

3 a
bo

ve
 

 
 CS

B 
 

51
.  

Fin
an

ce
 sh

ou
ld 

rev
iew

 th
e c

urr
en

t s
up

po
rt p

rov
ide

d t
o 

the
 ca

pit
al 

pro
gra

mm
e t

o e
ns

ure
 th

ere
 is
 cl

ari
ty 

of 
rol

es
, 

ex
pe

cta
tio

ns
 ar

e c
lea

r a
nd

 th
ere

 is
 ad

eq
ua

te 
str

ate
gic

 
ov

ers
igh

t.  
 

 Me
d 

Ro
les

 ha
ve

 be
en

 cl
ari

fie
d w

ith
in 

Fin
an

ce
.  

Th
is 
ne

ed
s t

o a
lig

n w
ith

 th
e w

ide
r re

vie
w 

of 
go

ve
rna

nc
e f

or 
the

 ca
pit

al 
pro

gra
mm

e 
to 

en
su

re 
tha

t a
ll in

vo
lve

d h
av

e a
 cl

ea
r 

un
de

rst
an

din
g o

f th
e r

eq
uir

em
en

ts.
 

 Ja
n 2

01
1 

 MB
 

 Co
mp

let
e 

52
.  

Re
vie

w 
the

 ad
eq

ua
cy
 of

 th
e c

orp
ora

te 
rep

ort
ing

 an
d 

mo
nit

ori
ng

 of
 st

rat
eg

ic,
 hi

gh
 pr

ofi
le 

pro
jec

ts.
 

 
 Hig

h 
 To

 be
 de

ve
lop

ed
 as

 pa
rt o

f 3
3 a

bo
ve

  
 

 CS
B 

 

53
.  

Re
inf

orc
e i

ts 
ex

pe
cta

tio
ns

 of
 pr

oje
ct 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
 

 
 

 
 

22



 
9

DR
AF

T 

me
tho

do
log

y b
ein

g u
se

d o
n c

ap
ita

l p
roj

ec
ts.

  
 

Hig
h 

Se
e a

bo
ve

 
CS

B 
54

.  
Ad

dre
ss

 pu
rch

as
e o

rde
rs 

no
t b

ein
g r

ais
ed

 or
 be

ing
 

rai
se

d a
fte

r in
vo

ice
s h

av
e b

ee
n r

ec
eiv

ed
. In

 ad
dre

ss
ing

 
thi

s, 
the

 C
ou

nc
il s

ho
uld

 co
ns

ide
r th

e a
pp

roa
ch

 to
 ad

op
t, 

be
ca

us
e t

he
 in

clu
sio

n o
f c

om
mi

tm
en

ts 
is 
on

ly 
of 

va
lue

 in
 

mo
nit

ori
ng

 an
d c

he
ck

ing
, if

 th
ere

 is
 cl
ari

ty 
ab

ou
t 

tim
es

ca
les

 an
d d

eli
ve

rab
les

.  B
y w

ay
 of

 illu
str

ati
on

, a
 

pro
jec

t w
hic

h h
as

 a 
co

mm
itm

en
t s

ho
win

g 8
0%

 of
 sp

en
d, 

co
uld

 st
ill b

e o
ve

rsp
en

t, i
f s

pe
nd

 is
 ex

pe
cte

d t
o b

e 
ev

en
ly 

inc
urr

ed
 an

d t
he

 co
mm

itm
en

t is
 on

ly 
up

 to
 pe

rio
d 

6. 
 

 

 
 Re

mi
nd

ers
 ha

ve
 al

rea
dy

 be
en

 is
su

ed
 to

 
all
 SA

P u
se

rs 
on

 th
e i

mp
ort

an
ce

 of
 

rai
sin

g p
urc

ha
se

 or
de

rs 
in 

ad
va

nc
e. 

 As
 pa

rt o
f th

e p
roc

ure
me

nt 
pro

jec
t, 

ad
dit

ion
al 

ch
ec

ks
 an

d c
on

tro
ls 

wil
l b

e p
ut 

in 
pla

ce
 in

 re
lat

ion
 to

 pu
rch

as
e o

rde
rs.

 

Co
mp

lia
nc

e 
sy
ste

ms
 to

 be
 

de
ve

lop
ed

 du
rin

g 
20

11
-12

 

 MB
 

 

Or
ga

nis
ati

on
al 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
55

.  
  

Im
ple

me
nt 

in 
the

 C
S a

nd
 C

&E
 te

am
s p

erf
orm

an
ce

 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

of 
ind

ivid
ua

ls 
us

ing
 re

gu
lar

 1:
1s

 an
d 

IPA
Ds

.  
 

 Hig
h 

 
  

 CD
 & 

BH
 

 

56
.  

De
ve

lop
 a 

sh
are

d u
nd

ers
tan

din
g o

f a
pp

rop
ria

te 
se

nio
r 

off
ice

r o
ve

rsi
gh

t a
nd

 re
po

rtin
g o

f w
ork

 un
de

rta
ke

n b
y 

jun
ior

 st
aff

.  
 

 
 Co

mm
iss

ion
 an

 O
D 
pro

jec
t fo

r a
ll 

ma
na

ge
rs 

 
 TW

 
 

57
.  

Co
ns

ide
r h

ow
 to

 su
pp

ort
 & 

de
ve

lop
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ac

co
un

tab
ility

  
 

 
To

 be
 co

ns
ide

red
 at

 C
SB

 aw
ay

da
y, 

bu
t 

sta
rt b

y a
gre

ein
g a

cti
on

 po
int

s &
 ac

tio
n 

ow
ne

rs 
at 

CS
B 

Ja
n 2

01
1 

 CS
B 

 

58
.  

 
Co

ns
ide

r w
ha

t a
cti

on
 is

 ne
ed

ed
 sp

ec
ific

all
y a

nd
 m

ore
 

ge
ne

ral
ly 
to 

en
su

re 
tha

t in
div

idu
als

 co
mp

ly 
wit

h c
on

tro
ls 

an
d t

he
 re

sp
on

sib
iliti

es
 as

 se
t o

ut 
eg

 in
 th

e F
ina

nc
ial
 

Re
gu

lat
ion

s. 
Th

is 
inc

lud
es

 ta
kin

g p
roa

cti
ve

 ac
tio

n w
he

n 
the

re 
is 
ev

ide
nc

e o
f is

su
es

 of
 co

nc
ern

 or
 fa

ilu
re 

to 
co

mp
ly 
wit

h t
he

 re
lev

an
t s

ys
tem

s a
nd

 pr
oc

ed
ure

s. 
Th

e 
ov

err
idi

ng
 ob

jec
tiv
e s

ho
uld

 be
 to

 pr
om

ote
 th

e b
es

t 
int

ere
sts

 of
 th

e C
ou

nc
il. 

 Lo
w 

 
tbc

 
 Co

rpo
rat

e 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e 

Gr
ou

p 

 

 
 23



24

This page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT FOR: 
 

Governance, Audit and 
Risk Management 
Committee 

Date of Meeting: 
 

19 January 2011 

Subject: 
 

International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) update 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Myfanwy Barrett Corporate Director of 
Finance  

Exempt: 
 

No 

Enclosures: 
 

Nil 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
 
This report sets out an update on the IFRS plan and implementation timetable 
 
Recommendations: 
The GARM Committee is requested to note progress. 
 
Reason:   
To ensure that GARM   are properly informed about the statutory duties of the 
council in relation to its accounts and can monitor progress against the 
statutory timetable. 
 

Agenda Item 10 
Pages 25 to 28 

25



Section 2 – Report 
 
Section 2 – Report 
 
IFRS Implementation Update 
 
1. As reported in June, further work on IFRS implementation has been 

carried out and the restatement of balance sheet as at 1 April 2009 and 31 
March 2010 is now completed as detailed below.  This means that the Key 
Milestone 2 of the project has been met despite the challenging 
circumstances:- 

 
a) Private Finance Initiatives - restatement of the balance sheet for both 

years was completed in June 2010 and has been audited as part of the 
2009-10 accounts. 

b) Employee Benefits - work on this area did progress well and the 
restatement completed in second week of December 2010. 

c) Government Grants - restatement completed in second week of 
December 2010. 

d) Fixed Asset – The main areas that were identified were 
reclassification of assets and treatment of impairment on assets.  
Restatement for these areas was completed in fourth week of 
December 2010. 

e) Property Leases – 14 lessor leases and 3 lessee leases were 
identified for review.  The review concluded that the leases were 
operating leases and therefore no changes to the accounting 
treatment.  The work on this area was completed at the beginning of 
December 2010. 

f) Plant and Equipment Leases - There were two main corporate 
contracts which were identified for review under this category.  In 
addition, leasing undertaken by schools was identified for review.  
There were delays in obtaining information from suppliers which 
resulted in the restatement work completing in fourth week of 
December 2010. 

g) Embedded Leases – A full review of vendor payments was 
undertaken which identified two suppliers for further review.  The work 
on this was completed by end of December and no embedded leases 
were identified. 

h) Cash and Cash equivalent – Restatement work on this area was 
completed by end of November 2010. 

 
2. Work on component accounting policy is completed and is awaiting 

External auditor’s endorsement. 
 
3. There are significant changes in the disclosure requirements under the 

IFRS code.  Work on the skeleton Financial Statement has already started 
and will be completed by third week of February.  This work will lead to 
meeting Milestone 3 of the project as detailed on the next page.  External 
auditors will audit the restated accounts along with the skeleton Financial 
Statement from week commencing 21st February 2011.  The outcome will 
be reported to the committee in June 2011.   

26



Year
Month No

v

De
c

Ja
n

Fe
b

Ma
r

Ap
r

Ma
y

Ju
n

Ju
ly

Au
g

Se
p

Oc
t

No
v

De
c

Ja
n

Fe
b

Ma
r

Ap
r

Ma
y

Ju
n

Key Milestones

Restate 1 April 
2009 Balance 
Sheet

Restate 1 April 
2010 Balance 
Sheet

Restated accounts 
audited

Produce first set of 
IFRS compliant 
accounts

Project Plan
2009 2010 2011

Restate 1 April 2009 
Balance Sheet

Restated Accounts 
Audited

Produce first set of IFRS compliant accounts

Extended timeframe for restating 
1 April 2009 Balance 

Restate 1 April 2010 Balance SheetBring forward the timeframe for restating 1 
April 2010 Balance

Key Milestone 1:
1 April 2009 Balance Sheet Retated

Key Milestone 2:
1 April 2010 Balance Sheet Retated

Key Milestone 3:
Restated Accounts audited

27



Section 3 – Financial Implications 
 
4. None directly. IFRS relates to accounting standards. 
 
Section 4 – Statutory clearance 
     
Name: Myfanwy Barrett √ Chief Financial Officer 
  Date: 6 January 2011   
    
Name: Sarah Wilson √ On behalf of 

Monitoring Officer 
  Date: 5 January 2011   
 
 
 
Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact:  Jennifer Hydari, Divisional Director – Finance and Procurement (Tel: 0208 424 1393 – internal 2393) 
 
Background Papers:  Code of practice on Local Authority Accounting in United Kingdom 2010-2011.  
 

28



 

REPORT FOR: 
 

Governance, Audit and 
Risk Management 
Committee 
 

Date of Meeting: 
 

19 January 2011 

Subject: 
 

INFORMATION REPORT – Annual 
Audit Letter 2009/10 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Myfanwy Barrett 
Corporate Director of Finance  

Exempt: 
 

No  
 

Enclosures: 
 

Annual Audit Letter 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary 
 
 
This report provides the Committee with an opportunity to consider the Annual 
Audit Letter. 
 
FOR INFORMATION 
 
 

Agenda Item 11 
Pages 29 to 42 

29



 

 

 

Section 2 – Report 
 
1. The Council’s External Auditor, appointed by the Audit Commission, is 

Deloitte LLP. 
 
2. Each year the External Auditor provides the Council with a summary of his 

work in the Annual Audit Letter. 
 
3. The Annual Audit Letter for 2010 is attached. 
 
4. The Committee is asked to consider the letter. 
 
5. The recommendations in relation to capital expenditure on page 4 of the 

letter will be addressed by officers as part of the response to the 
investigation. 

 
 

Section 3 – Further Information 
 
None 
 
Section 4 – Financial Implications 
 
6. The Audit Letter concerns the Council’s accounts, returns, grant claims 

and wider value for money issues. 
 

Section 5 – Corporate Priorities  
 

7. The letter relates to the whole Council. 
 

 
 

 
 

   
 

Name: Myfanwy Barrett. �  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date:  4 January 2011 

   
 
 
Section 6 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact:  Myfanwy Barrett, 020 8420 9269 
 
Background Papers:   
None 

30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



REPORT FOR: 
 

Governance, Audit and 
Risk Management 
Committee 

Date of Meeting: 
 

19 January 2011 

Subject: 
 

INFORMATION REPORT -  Risk, Audit & 
Fraud Division Activity Update  
 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Myfanwy Barrett Corporate Director  Finance 

Exempt: 
 

No 

Enclosures: 
 

Appendix 1: Audit Commission report - 
Protecting the Public Purse 
 
Appendix 2: DCLG Fraud Funding Letter  
 
Appendix 3: DPW Fraud & Error Special 
Supplement  
 
Appendix 4: Asbestos management report 

 
 
Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
 
This report outlines the current work streams of the Risk, Audit and Fraud 
group of services.  
 
Recommendations:  
 
The Committee is requested to note the progress across the division to fulfil 
the Committee’s role of reviewing and monitoring the work carried out by the 
Risk, Audit and Fraud Division. 
 
FOR INFORMATION 
 
 

Agenda Item 12 
Pages 43 to 130 

43



 

 
Section 2 – Report 
 
Background 
 
2.1 This report sets out the progress made and future work planned in 

respect of the Risk, Audit and Fraud group of services, which the 
GARMC is responsible for monitoring as part of its terms of reference. 

 
2.2 The focus of this monitoring is quarter 3 in 2010/11, October to 

December 2010. 
 
2.3 At its last meeting, the Committee requested more detailed information 

where this was appropriate and accordingly this report sets out a 
summary of the work undertaken across all the teams but also includes 
a more thorough explanation of three key areas of work, namely 
Corporate Anti-Fraud, Information Management and asbestos 
management activities. 

 
Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Planning 
 
2.4 The main work delivered during the quarter was as follows:  
 

• Delivered training to Members on their role during a major incident on 
30th November, as part of the Member Development Programme. 

  
• Assisted the Police on Operation Fairway, a counter terrorist 

awareness programme for local businesses. 
  

• Hosted “Exercise Canberra” to test the council’s response to a CBR 
(Chemical, Biological and Radiological) incident with multi-agency 
partners.  50 officers attended from the Police, Fire, Ambulance, NHS, 
Health Protection Agency, Red Cross, neighbouring boroughs and the 
council. 

 
• Jointly hosted “Exercise Edenhope” to test the council and NHS 

response to dealing with vulnerable people during a major incident. 
 

• Took part in “Exercise Preparer”, a London-wide training exercise for 
all 33 borough emergency planning officers organised by London Fire 
Brigade. 

 
• Assisted Facilities Management who held a Central Depot evacuation 

exercise with Metropolitan Police Service, London Fire Brigade and 
London Ambulance Service. 

 
• Attended Humanitarian Assistance Centre training for emergency 

planners and responders in London. 
 

• Held the annual Business Continuity phone cascade test in November, 
which was a good success. 

44



 

 
2.5 During the final quarter the main tasks scheduled are as follows: 
 

• Delivering training to our Emergency Response Officers on the role of 
a local authority liaison officer during a major incident  

 
• Participate in the Cabinet Office’s Civil Contingencies Act 

Enhancement Programme Consultation  
 

• Participate in the London Human Infectious Diseases Framework 
Validation  

 
• Deliver training to the senior management team on strategic 

management during a major incident  
 

• Take part in “Exercise Safer City”, the London Fire Brigade exercise for 
emergency planning officers across all 33 boroughs    

 
• Continue monitoring the influenza pandemic situation and attending the 

Influenza Pandemic Committee hosted by NHS Harrow    
 

• Take part in the West London communications test for emergency 
planners and responders  

 
Business Risk Management 
 
2.6 The main activity during the period was to appoint a new interim Risk 

Manager following the departure of the previous post holder and to 
handover the work programme. This is now achieved and the Risk 
Manager is also leading on the assurance mapping project, in close 
liaison with Internal Audit. 

 
2.7 The assurance mapping project will identify all sources of assurance 

being carried out across the council with a view to identifying any 
duplication and gaps. 

 
2.8 Going forward, the Interim Risk Manager will be picking up the work 

programme of risk management activities carried out on a cyclical 
basis to ensure the strategic and operational risk registers are 
reviewed and updated on a timely basis.  

 
Insurance  
 
2.9 The key work achieved during the quarter was as follows:  
 

• The Lean review of the Insurance Service is nearing completion.  A 
capacity model has been produced, which will support the 
recommendations for the future structure of the section. 

 
• A good response has been received from the market for the Insurance 

London Consortium (ILC) insurance and claims handling tenders.  The 
closing date for submission of tenders is 11th January. 

 

45



 

• Five insurers submitted tenders for the Tenant's Home Contents 
Insurance scheme.  Tenders were jointly evaluated by the Insurance 
Service and Corporate Procurement and supported by Legal Services. 

 
• The Motor Risk Management Standards review has been completed 

and insurers have identified areas of best practice. 
 
2.10 During the final quarter of 2010/11 the main tasks scheduled are as 
follows: 
 

• Implementation of the recommendations from the Lean review of the 
Insurance Service. 

 
• In conjunction with external solicitors a mock trial is to be staged on 

18th January to provide witness training for Highways Officers and 
other Council staff who may be involved in litigated insurance claims. 

 
• Recommendations arising from the evaluation of the Tenant's Home 

Contents Insurance tender will be submitted to the Strategic 
Procurement Board in January. 

 
• Evaluation of the Insurance London Consortium (ILC) tender 

submissions is scheduled for 12th January and the results will be 
reported in full to GARMC in March. 

 
Internal Audit  
 
2.11 The work of Internal Audit is reported in detail to GARMC at mid-year 

and year-end.  Throughout quarter 3 Internal Audit have continued to 
work towards completing the 2010/11 plan, including a number of 
suspected financial irregularity investigations. 

 
2.12 Work has also continued with the Interim Risk Manager on the 

Assurance Mapping Exercise and on recruitment, the outcome of the 
re-evaluation of the Senior Professional’s role is still awaited. 

 
2.13 Internal Audit have been asked to confirm that recommendations made 

as a result of the investigation into the overspend of the Children’s 
Services Capital Programme have been implemented and report to the 
GARM Committee.   

 
2.14 This work will be undertaken in quarter 4, the days allocated in the 

2010/11 plan for a review of the Capital Programme will be used, 
however, it is anticipated that more days will be required and this will 
have an impact on other areas of the plan. The position will be 
reported to the next GARMC meeting (29th March).   

 
 
Corporate Anti Fraud Team 
 
2.15 During the quarter the Corporate Anti-Fraud team achieved the 

following (figures represent the position at 23/12/2010): 
 

46



 

2.16  Benefit fraud 
 

Referrals received = 127   
Closed investigations (cases investigated by Investigation Officers, 
does not include anything risk-assessed out) = 42 
Cautions issued = 2 
Administrative penalties = 7 
Administrative penalties raised = £9274.62 (fines) 
Summons issued = 3 
Successful prosecutions = 4 
Overpayments = £126,362.97 (in relation to the above cautions, 
administrative penalties & prosecution cases) 

 
2.17  Corporate Fraud  
 

Referrals received = 31 
Closed investigations (cases investigated by Investigation Officers, 
does not include anything risk-assessed out) = 15 
Cautions issued = 7 
Summons issued = 3  
Successful prosecutions = 1  
Application for services refused/withdrawn = 0  
Employee dismissals/conduct activity = 0 

 
2.18  Successful prosecution case studies: 
 
2.19   Ms Saker Dhanani 
 

Ms Dhanani pleaded guilty at Harrow Magistrates on Thursday (27th 
October) to five charges of benefit fraud in which she was overpaid 
housing benefit of £64,536.43 and council tax benefit of £6,415.25 
between January 1996 and June 2007.   
Ms Dhanani had received housing and council tax benefit that she was 
not entitled to by claiming she paid rent for a property that she jointly 
owned with her daughter.   
 
She claimed housing and council tax benefit from Harrow Council for a 
property at Kenmore Avenue with her late husband in 1996.   
 
On her application forms she said she did not own any property and 
that her landlord was Ms Rajan and that Ms Rajan was not a relative of 
hers.   
 
However, in 2008 an investigation began after the Council Tax Dept 
passed a suspicion to the fraud team that Ms Rajan was in fact Ms 
Dhanani’s daughter.   
 
When interviewed by investigators, Ms Dhanani claimed she didn't 
know she was the joint owner of the Kenmore Avenue property from 
1996 - 2003 and that her late husband dealt with the paperwork, this 
despite signing over her share of the property to her daughter in 2003 
and then continuing to claim benefit until 2007.   
 

47



 

She did accept however, that had she told the truth she would not have 
received Housing Benefit and would have ended up on the street.  Ms 
Dhanani was sentenced to six months imprisonment which was 
suspended for 12 months due to her age and physical health.   
 
To date just £8,000 has been repaid to the Council with monthly 
payments of £100 in place. 

 
 
2.20 Mr Abdul Wahid 
 

Saman Abdul Wahid, 39, of The Crossway, Wealdstone, had pleaded 
guilty at Harrow Crown Court on 1st October 2010 to nine charges of 
benefit fraud in which he was overpaid Housing & Council Tax Benefit 
of £8,127.81 as well as Income support of £22,674.81 between 
January 1996 & June 2007.   
 
The father of two had claimed Housing & Council Tax Benefit from 
Harrow Council & Income Support from the DWP in 2002 on the basis 
that he was unemployed & held one bank account.   
 
However in October 2007 he started working for Sam’s mechanics 
based in Masons Avenue Wealdstone & failed to inform the Council 
that he had started work.   
 
This led Harrow Council to start an investigation that uncovered a bank 
account that Abdul-Wahid had failed to declare on his claims for 
benefits.   
 
The bank was contacted & bank statements for this undeclared 
account were obtained.  The statements showed that £83,000 had 
been deposited into the account in the six year period he was claiming 
Income Support.   
 
Copies of credit applications completed by Abdul Wahid were also 
obtained & they showed that when applying for credit he had 
represented his income as £65,000 per year.   
 
Abdul-Wahid was sentenced on 29th October 2010 at Harrow Crown 
Court to 6 months imprisonment suspended for 12 months.  He was 
also ordered to carry out 300 hours of unpaid work within the next 12 
months & ordered to observe a curfew between the hours of 7pm to 
7am for 6 months.   
 
He is repaying the overpaid benefit at the rate of £110 a month    

    
2.21 Mrs Beverly Wright 
 

Beverley Wright, 47, of Kenton Lane, had pleaded guilty at Harrow 
Magistrates Court on 4th November 2010 to two charges of benefit 
fraud in which she was overpaid Housing & Council Tax Benefit of 
£8,321.75 as well as Income support of £5,309.55 between June 2007 
& January 2009.   

48



 

 
She had claimed Housing & Council Tax Benefit from Harrow Council 
& Income Support from the DWP in 2000 on the basis that she was 
unemployed & a single mother of one.     
 
However, following an anonymous tip off in June 2007 and lengthy 
enquiries, Council investigators discovered that her husband Andrew 
Reid, had moved in with her in June 2007 & was in full time 
employment earning in the region £21,000.   
 
Also uncovered were three concealed bank accounts for Wright which 
indicated a lifestyle above and beyond what she was representing to 
the Council and account activity illustrating a three week holiday in the 
US in August 2007.   
 
Searches for Andrew Reid also revealed 6 concealed credit accounts 
for Andrew Reid registered at the address with spending on one of the 
accounts in the US at the same time.    
 
Mrs. Wright was sentenced on 24th November 2010 at Harrow 
Magistrates Court & ordered to carry out 200 hours of unpaid work & 
pay prosecution costs of £500 

 
2.22 Mr Alan Traynor 
 
 

Alan Traynor of Masefield Avenue, had pleaded guilty at Harrow 
Magistrates Court on 1st December 2010 to three charges of benefit 
fraud in which he was overpaid Housing Benefit amounting to £3158.21 
between February 2009 & October 2009.   
 
Mr Traynor had claimed benefit on the basis of Job Seekers Allowance 
and vacated the address at Masefield Avenue and continued to claim 
benefit payments direct into his account to which he was not entitled.   
 
He admitted failing to notify the Council of the change and refused to 
confirm what he had spent the money on.   
 
However, when offered a financial penalty as an alternative to 
prosecution, he failed to attend interview and so legal proceedings 
were issued against him.   
 
Mr Traynor was sentenced to 150 hours Community Service.                  

 
2.23 Mrs Jayshree Halligan 
 
 

Jayshree Halligan, of Sussex Road, Watford appeared at Harrow 
Magistrates Court on 22nd December 2010 and pleaded guilty to one 
offence of disabled blue badge misuse.   
 
Mrs Halligan had been apprehended by fraud officers on joint fraud drive 
‘Operation Cactus’ on St Johns Road/Lyon Road with the Greenhill Way 

49



 

Safer Neighbourhood Team and claimed that the badge belonging to her 
son was being displayed correctly as she was meeting him in the 
shopping centre with the child’s father.   
 
Despite trying to make contact with them, attempts failed so she was 
invited to attend an interview.   
 
She persisted with the explanation, however, further checks were 
undertaken by officers, confirming that her son was registered as being in 
school on the day the misuse was uncovered.   
 
Mrs Halligan was issued with £150 fine and prosecution costs of £500.    

 
General fraud update 
 
National Fraud Initiative (NFI) 
 
2.24 All requested NFI data was successfully and securely uploaded onto the 

Audit Commission website in October 2010.   
 
2.25 The NFI is a public sector nationwide data-matching exercise co-

ordinated by the Audit Commission that runs every two years and has 
resulted in the identification of £664million in incorrect overpayments 
since its inception in 1996.   

 
2.26 The matched data for 2011/12 exercise will arrive back into the authority 

for further investigation in January 2011 covering areas such as Housing 
Benefits, Payroll and Pensions, Blue Badges, Creditors, Insurance 
claims, Housing rents and Private Residential Care Homes.         

 
Audit Commission report – “Protecting the Public Purse” 
 
2.27 Reference was made to Harrow Council in the Audit Commission’s 

‘Protecting the Public Purse’ report issued in October 2010 for good 
practice in dealing with Council Tax Single Person Discount (SPD) fraud 
(Appendix 1 paragraph 36).   
 

2.28 This work is conducted by the Revenues team who have undertaken a 
rolling programme of SPD reviews over the last three years which has 
resulted in Harrow having the 3rd lowest incidence of SPD exemptions in 
the country.   

 
2.29 The report also deals with current levels and areas of fraud affecting 

local authorities which was based on findings from the annual fraud 
survey.  The report focuses on the areas of most susceptible to fraud 
risks, namely Direct Payments, Housing tenancy fraud, Blue Badges, 
Procurement, Payroll, Pension & expenses and Insurance claims.   

 
2.30 The CAFT is focussing on four of the above areas as part of the fraud 

service plan for 2011/12.  These are direct payments, housing tenancy 
fraud, recruitment and blue badge misuse.  The results of which will be 
fed into a year end report.    

 

50



 

Housing Tenancy Fraud  
 
2.31 Harrow Council obtained £30,000 grant funding last year to assist in 

implementing a range of measures to tackle tenancy fraud such as a 
best practice guide to tackling sub-letting, increasing the use of 
enhanced tenancy audits, encouraging partnership working with 
Registered Social Landlords (RSL’s), setting up of a tenant hotline and 
the use of specialist investigators. 

 
2.32 Strong evidence and positive results had emerged from other local 

authorities that had used specialist investigators to tackle tenancy fraud 
so a decision was taken to recruit a dedicated Investigation Officer on a 
12 month contract.  The officer was appointed in December 2010 and 
will commence work in January 2011 in the CAFT, working alongside 
Housing Management and Registered Social landlords 

 
2.33 Given the pressure on social housing across the country, particularly in 

London and the continued depressed economic conditions, the 
government via the Department of Communities and Local Government 
has provided a further financial incentive to the 51 authorities that have 
been most proactive in dealing with housing tenancy fraud.  Harrow 
Council has been allocated a further £100,000 in 2011/12 and £100,000 
in 2012/13 as part of the Preventing Homelessness area based grant to 
go towards housing fraud initiatives.  (Appendix 2 DCLG letter).   

 
2.34 The grant however is not ring fenced and whilst an extra £100,000 has 

been awarded to tackle housing tenancy fraud, a decision on allocation 
of this funding will be required.   

 
2.35 Harrow welcomes this additional funding to tackle this area of fraud and 

the CAFT strongly supports the continuation of the dedicated 
Investigation Officer post past the initial 12 month contract in addition to 
other proactive work such as data-matching.  

 
Welfare Reform  
 
2.36 The DWP published their new fraud and error strategy for tackling fraud 

and error in the benefits and tax credit systems on 18th October 2010, 
with no consultation with local authority associations.  Their intention is 
to simplify the welfare system and to generate reductions in fraud and 
error by over 25% (£1.4bn) by 2015.  The proposals form part of a more 
detailed White Paper that enters parliament in January 2011. (Appendix 
3 - Housing Benefit Direct summary of proposals).                  
   

2.37 The DWP are proposing to introduce and administer a Universal Credit 
(UC) to replace all other benefits (including housing/council tax benefit) 
to be implemented from 2013 in a phased approach so that by 2017 all 
other benefits will be replaced by the new UC. They are also proposing 
to remove the investigation of this benefit from local authorities and 
create a Single Fraud Investigation Service, again that they will 
administer.  Both of these measures will impact upon current local 
authority services and will place at risk both the housing benefit and 

51



 

CAFT services. There are currently 6 FTE’s in the CAFT team in Harrow 
plus the affects on the Housing Benefits team.      

 
2.38 Naturally this announcement has triggered a national debate amongst 

local authorities and it is clear that there are concerns from most local 
authorities at the implications that this change may bring. In consultation 
with the Portfolio Holder, our current position is that we would wish to 
retain the service locally. 

 
2.39 The Committee will be kept advised of developments and once a proper 

consultation / dialogue commences, the Committee’s views will be 
sought on these proposals.       

 
Operation Elderflower 
 
2.40 The CAFT successfully executed a blue badge fraud drive on December 

9th 2010 in conjunction with Harrow Police, Greenhill Safer 
Neighbourhood Team and Parking Enforcement and apprehended 16 
individuals suspected of misusing badges on Greenhill Way.  All were 
issued with penalty charge notices and will be interviewed by fraud 
officers in the New Year about the misuse.  One individual was arrested 
in possession of a stolen badge issued by another Council and also a 
badge issued by Harrow Council registered to his late grandfather.  He 
was released on bail to return at a later date after questioning by 
officers. 

 
 
Communications of Successful Prosecutions 
 
2.41 The CAFT has historically publicised all successful prosecutions to fall 

into line with best practice issued by CIPFA and DWP guidelines in an 
attempt to illustrate to the community that fraud will be dealt with robustly 
and in serious cases, offenders can expect to be brought in front of the 
courts.  This publicity work is undertaken in conjunction with the 
Communications Team.   

 
2.42 The CAFT Sanction and Prosecution Policy sets out the criteria for 

instigating legal proceedings against offenders and central to this policy 
is Code for Crown Prosecutors which deals with the evidential test and 
public interest test.  All cases are passed through both of the tests and 
only those cases that meet evidential requirements and where it is 
deemed in the public interest to prosecute, proceed to prosecution   The 
CAFT sees prosecution as a last resort, therefore only the most serious 
of cases or those with aggravating factors are approved for prosecution 
and this decision is not taken lightly.   

   
2.43 There is therefore an inevitable tension between the Council’s current 

communications strategy which is to play down these cases, and the 
message that the CAFT would wish to convey to the community as a 
deterrent. 

 
Focus on Information Management 
 

52



 

2.44 The Council's business is built on the data that we manage and the safe 
keeping of this data is a critical responsibility for the Council. Poor data 
security control is a serious, widespread, high-impact financial and 
reputational risk. The information Commissioners Office (ICO) now has 
powers to impose substantial fines on organisations that ‘deliberately’ or 
‘recklessly’ commit serious breaches of the DPA. The maximum fine the 
ICO can impose has now been set at £500,000.  
 

2.45 On Wednesday, 24 November 2010, the Information Commissioner 
issued his first monetary penalty (£100,000) to Hertfordshire County 
Council. These high profile and highly publicised incidents have 
prompted management and audit committees in many local authorities to 
increase their focus on the risk of data loss and theft and to ensure that 
the risk is adequately managed. 

 
2.46 Risks include the possibility of IT systems being compromised, data 

being lost, damaged, unavailable or unlawfully disclosed to unauthorised 
persons and of course the adverse national publicity this could cause.  

 
2.47 The Council has acknowledged that information management is an area 

of importance and as such has created an Information Management 
Team (IMT) to be responsible for the overall management of data 
security, as a fundamental business resource, to ensure that information 
needs of the Council are met, and complies with legislative 
requirements. IMT will manage and develop security policies to 
implement an Information security strategy across the Council and co-
ordinate ‘virtual’ teams of FOI/DPA/EDRMS champions to be consistent 
with their approach. 

 
2.48 The Service Manager, Information Management also has responsibility 

for data protection including: 
 

• The provision of data protection awareness for staff within the 
Council (aided by the council’s Legal department); 

• The provision of information security training (aided by e-
learning tool); 

• The development of best practice guidelines; 
• Carrying out compliance checks to ensure adherence 

throughout the Council with the Act; 
• Provision of professional support, updates and advice to 

officers on data protection and related matters; 
• Notification to the Information Commissioner. 
 

2.49 The London Government Association (LGA) has issued data security 
good practice guidelines for local authorities to follow, however they only 
provide a stable platform for data security, the Council will aim towards 
implementing an information management strategy to establish a 
comprehensive programme of work to achieve progress through clearly 
identifiable milestones towards the achievement of three main goals: 

 
• Embedding Information Risk Management culture within the authority; 
• Implementing best practice Information Assurance measures; 
• Effective compliance. 

53



 

 
2.50 As governments cast a wider net on their ability to share sensitive 

information among agencies, security requirements dictate that a 
sophisticated internal networking environment be developed (i.e. the 
Government Connect CoCo initiative).  

2.51 Internally, IMT is trying to adopt the same approach to information 
sharing by implementing an ongoing programme of work (with the help 
of our Capita partners) using the Council’s workflow platform, Civica. 
The principles underpinning this project are to modernise and 
standardise processes to help the council deliver more efficient services 
to customers and to build an IT platform which can be extended to other 
services areas for transformation and information sharing.   

 
2.52 EDRMS (Electronic Documents and Records Management System) is 

the new technology being utilised to achieve this project. The Document 
& Records Management Systems Officer (within IMT) provides corporate 
first line application support for Civica W2 Document Management & 
Workflow system and the EDRMS.   

  

2.53 The Document & Records Management Systems Officer also acts as 
systems consultant / project manager to Council staff in areas where the 
system is being rolled out to new areas, as well as responsibility for the 
coordination and implementation of new system releases & patches, 
ensuring all work is coordinated with relevant existing user departments 
and by the set deadlines to minimise disruption to users. 

 
2.54 Information Architecture requires a hands-on functional specialist to 

manage the file structure in the EDRMS and develop it as new services 
are incorporated. This role (Information Architect) within IMT has taken 
the lead on Document and Records Management across the Council by 
providing professional expertise and experience in the areas of 
Information Architecture, Retention and Destruction Policy, and wider 
related areas of Information governance.  She has worked closely with 
Capita to develop the EDRMS system as new service areas and 
directorates are incorporated into the architecture and is also part of the 
council’s flexible working project to ensure that information 
governance/data security policies are adhere to.   

 
2.55 On-going projects within IMT include: 
 

• Assist all Directorates to develop their Information Asset Register and 
Information Risk Action Plan, which in turn will enable IMT to 
formulate a corporate information asset register and ensure 
Information Risk Action Plans are in place; 

 
• Implement a new DPA / FOI tracking system across Council; 

 
 

• Incorporating information classification across the Council; 
 

54



 

• Policy acceptance software solution (dependant on funding and 
resources); 

 
• Developing a council record and document retention schedule; 

 
• Lead on the Local Government Transparency Agenda which requires 

local authorities to publish spend data over £500 and publish senior 
salaries information; 

 
 

• Information Architecture – Work with the Council’s partner Capita to 
develop and implement a Corporate Information Architecture; 

 
• Representing Harrow Council in the Pan-London Secure Data 

Software Procurement exercise. 
 

2.56 Progress in quarter 3 was specifically around the following: 
 
• Assisting all Directorates to develop their Information Asset Register 

and Information Risk Action Plans (Dec 2010);  
 
• Development of Council records management policy and document 

retention schedules;  
 

 
• Data gathering exercise to enable implementation of information 

classification across the Council; 
  

2.57 Work for the final quarter of the year includes: 
  
• Commencement of the corporate information asset register;  
 
• Complete the implementation of DPA / FOI tracking system across 

Council – 31st March 2011.  
 
• Finalising Members email arrangements. 

 
Health and Safety 
 
Asbestos Management 
 
 
2.58  At its meeting in November, the Committee received a half-year health 

and safety report which included an overview of the issues identified 
around the management of asbestos and the comprehensive work 
programme underway to address these issues. This report addresses 
the matter in more detail and includes the investigation report as an 
appendix.  

 
2.59 To recap, in June 2010 the Health and Safety Executive (HSE) served 

three improvement notices on Harrow Council relating to the 
management of asbestos in schools. 

 

55



 

2.60  The management of asbestos within schools is coordinated across three 
directorates, namely Corporate Finance (Corporate Health and Safety 
Team), Community and Environment (Facilities Management Major & 
Minor Works team) and Children’s Services. 

 
2.61  An investigation was carried out to determine the root causes which lead 

to the improvement notices being served, and this is attached at 
appendix 4 (individuals names have been removed to preserve 
anonymity). 

 
2.62  The report includes a comprehensive action plan to address the issues 

identified, which is also attached. 
 
2.63  The joint action plan is a key work stream for each of the directorates 

involved and some of the failings identified are subject to individual 
conduct investigations. 

 
2.64  In addition, as a result of the issues identified in relation to asbestos 

management a wider, independent, review of health and safety 
performance across the organisation has been commissioned. 

 
2.65  The improvement notices have been complied with and therefore 

withdrawn by the HSE. The HSE have also stated their intention to re-
visit the Council both in January and July 2011 to review training and 
auditing arrangements and to widen their scope to corporate properties, 
not just schools. 

 
2.66  Further updates will be reported to the Committee as appropriate. 
 
Quarter 3 key work streams – Corporate Health & Safety Team 
 
2.67 During quarter 3 the corporate health and safety team concentrated on 

the following activities, many of which stem from the action plan to 
address asbestos management issues identified by the HSE:  

 
• Delivery of health and safety training including premises managers' 

training to school duty holders. 
 

• Review and update of the following policies, fire safety policy, fire 
safety risk assessment, asbestos policy, asbestos code of practice, 
stress risk assessment, lone and remote working code of practice and 
display screen assessment code of practice. 

 
• Continued development of the health and safety management system 

including incident recording & management, extending access to the 
DSEASY system (display screen equipment risks) and exploring 
options relating to health and safety audit tools. 

 
• The provision of health and safety support across the directorates, 

including inspections of libraries and incident investigations. 
 

56



 

• Continued contribution to the development of asbestos management 
within the Council in response to the Improvement Notices issued in 
Q1/Q2. 

 
Section 3 – Further Information 
 
3.1 None – supplementary information is included in the appendices. 
 
Section 4 – Financial Implications 
 
4.1 The work of the Risk, Audit and Fraud division is carried out within the 

budget available and supports the achievement of financial objectives 
across the council. 

 
Section 5 – Corporate Priorities  
 
5.1 Collectively the division contributes to the delivery of all the corporate 

priorities through supporting the council as a whole to achieve their 
targets and objectives. 

 
 
 
 

   
 

Name: Myfanwy Barrett X  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: 6 January 2011 

   
 
 
Section 6 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact:  David Ward Tel: 020 8424 1781 
david.ward@harrow.gov.uk 
 
 
Background Papers:  None 

57



58

This page is intentionally left blank



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 
Appendix 2
  
Department for Communities and Local Government 
Zone 4/J6 
Eland House 
Bressenden Place 
London 
SW1E 5DU 

 
20 December 2010 

 
Dear Chief Executive, 
 
I am writing to let you know that as part of the Government’s commitment to tackling 
social housing fraud you have been allocated £100,000 in both 2011/12 and 2012/13 
to support further work in this area. This money will be paid via area-based grant and 
forms part of your Preventing Homelessness funding. 
 
Future funding for this work may also be available for 2013/14 and 2014/15. 
 
Further funding has been provided to enable the Chartered Institute of Housing to 
host a small team of experts who will be available to support social landlords across 
the country and offer advice on the most effective policies and procedures. 
 
Finally, the National Fraud Authority is in the process of setting up a framework 
agreement that will enable you to use credit reference agencies more cheaply, as a 
means of identifying potential fraud. We will supply further details on this in due 
course. 
 
If you have any questions about this initiative, please contact: 
socialhousingfraud@communities.gsi.gov.uk 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
 
Paul Downie 
Deputy Director, Housing Management and Performance 
 

107



108

This page is intentionally left blank



Ed
it

or
ia

l
!"
#$
%
&'
$(
&)
*$
&+
,*
&-
'$
.*
*/
$0(
*$
1,
2*
3$&
,0
24
+*
$2/
$5
")
*%
1*
,6.
$*
-2
02"
/$
"3
$7
"#
.2
/8
$9
*/
*:
0$;
2,*
40
$&
1"
#0
$0(
*$
/*
<
$=
,&
#-
$&
/-
$>
,,
",
$

?
0,
&0
*8
'$
<
(2
4(
$<
&.
$@
#1
+2.
(*
-$
"/
$A
"/
-&
'$
BC
0(
$D
40
"1
*,
E$F
(*
$.
0,
&0
*8
'$
4&
/$
1*
$3"
#/
-$
"/
$0(
*$
;
G
H
6.
$<
*1
.2
0*
$&
0$$

!
""
#
$%
%&
&
&
'(
&
#
')
*
+'
,
-%
(
*
./
%"
0.
-1
23
)
45
60
,
(
40
3
(
47
66
*
6'
#
(
5

I$<
&/
0$0
"$
.&
'$
("
<
$@
+*
&.
*-
$I$
&%
$0(
&0
$0(
*$
.0
,&
0*
8'
$&
--
,*
..
*.
$/
"0
$J#
.0
$0(
*$
1*
/*
:0
.$
;
G
H
$&
/-
$+"
4&
+$&
#0
("
,20
2*
.$
&-
%
2/
2.
0*
,K$
1#
0$&
+.
"$

0(
*$
F&
L$
M
,*
-2
0.
$&
-%
2/
2.
0*
,*
-$
1'
$7
A
N
M
E$F
(2
.$
%
*&
/.
$0(
&0
K$3
",
$0(
*$
:,
.0
$02
%
*$
*)
*,
K$<
*$
(&
)*
$&
$.
0,
&0
*8
'$
0(
&0
$3"
4#
.*
.$
"/
$,
*-
#4
2/
8$

3,
&#
-$
&/
-$
*,
,"
,$
&4
,"
..
$&
++$
"3
$0(
*.
*$
<
*+
3&
,*
$@
,"
8,
&%
%
*.
$&
/-
$<
2++
$(
*+
@$
,*
%
")
*$
."
%
*$
"3
$0(
*$
"@
*,
&0
2"
/&
+$1
&,
,2*
,.
$0(
&0
K$I
$O
/"
<
K$

(&
)*
$1
**
/$
&$
4&
#.
*$
"3
$3,
#.
0,
&0
2"
/$
3"
,$
2/
)*
.0
28
&0
",
.E
$

P
.$
'"
#$
%
&'
$(
&)
*$
.*
*/
K$0
(*
$.
0,
&0
*8
'$
2/
4+
#-
*.
$@
+&
/.
$3"
,$
&$
/*
<
$.
2/
8+
*$
3,
&#
-$
2/
)*
.0
28
&0
2"
/$
.*
,)
24
*K
$&
$/
*<
$2/
0*
8,
&0
*-
$,
2.
O$
&/
-$

2/
0*
++2
8*
/4
*$
#/
20$
&/
-$
&$
/*
<
$,
*8
2"
/&
+$%
"1
2+*
$0&
.O
$3"
,4
*E
$F
"8
*0
(*
,$
0(
*.
*$
<
2++
$@
,"
)2
-*
$0(
*$
1&
.2
.$
3"
,$
&$
/*
<
$,
&-
24
&+
K$2
//
")
&0
2)
*$

&@
@,
"&
4(
$0"
$@
,*
)*
/0
2/
8$
3,
&#
-$
&/
-$
*,
,"
,$
3,
"%
$8
*0
02/
8$
2/
0"
$"
#,
$.
'.
0*
%
.$
&.
$<
*+
+$&
.$
0&
,8
*0
2/
8$
3&
.0
*,
K$2
/0
*+
+28
*/
4*
$+*
-$
2/
0*
,)
*/
02"
/.
$

%
",
*$
*3
3*
40
2)
*+
'$
&0
$0(
*$
(2
8(
*.
0$,
2.
O$
4&
.*
.E
$

F
(&
0$.
&2
-K
$I$
<
&/
0$0
"$
&4
O/
"<
+*
-8
*$
0(
*$
%
&/
'$
4"
/4
*,
/.
$0(
&0
$(
&)
*$
1*
*/
$*
L@
,*
..
*-
$&
1"
#0
$/
"$
@,
2"
,$
4"
/.
#+
0&
02"
/$
<
20(
$'
"#
,$

P
..
"4
2&
02"
/.
$"
,$
"@
@"
,0
#/
20'
$3"
,$
+"
4&
+$&
#0
("
,20
2*
.$
0"
$4
"/
0,
21
#0
*$
0"
$-
*)
*+
"@
%
*/
0$"
3$0
(*
$.
0,
&0
*8
'$
1*
3"
,*
$@
#1
+24
&0
2"
/E
$P
+.
"$
I$O
/"
<
$

%
&/
'$
"3
$'
"#
$&
,*
$&
/L
2"
#.
$&
1"
#0
$<
(&
0$0
(*
$.
2/
8+
*$
=
,&
#-
$I/
)*
.0
28
&0
2"
/$
?
*,
)2
4*
$<
2++
$%
*&
/$
3"
,$
QP
$2/
)*
.0
28
&0
",
.E
$9
#0
K$&
0$0
(*
$.
&%
*$

02%
*K
$I$
<
&/
0$0
"$
,*
&.
.#
,*
$'
"#
$0(
&0
$0(
*,
*$
,*
%
&2
/.
$&
$+"
0$.
02+
+$0
"$
-"
$0"
$-
*)
*+
"@
$0(
*$
2/
202
&0
2)
*.
$2/
$0(
*$
.0
,&
0*
8'
$0"
$&
$+"
<
*,
$+*
)*
+$"
3$-
*0
&2
+$

&/
-$
0"
$@
,*
@&
,*
$0"
$2%
@+
*%
*/
0$0
(*
%
E$I
K$&
+"
/8
$<
20(
$%
'$
;
G
H
$&
/-
$7
A
N
M
$4
"+
+*
&8
#*
.K
$&
,*
$)
*,
'$
O*
*/
$0"
$<
",
O$
4+
".
*+
'$
<
20(
$'
"#
$&
/-
$

'"
#,
$Q
"4
&+
$P
#0
("
,20
'$
P
..
"4
2&
02"
/$
,*
@,
*.
*/
0&
02)
*.
$&
.$
<
*$
0&
O*
$&
++$
0(
2.
$3"
,<
&,
-E
$I/
$0(
*$
%
*&
/0
2%
*K
$I$
(&
)*
$/
"<
$%
*0
$.
*@
&,
&0
*+
'$

<
20(
$+"
4&
+$&
#0
("
,20
'$
,*
@,
*.
*/
0&
02)
*.
$3,
"%
$1
"0
($
0(
*$
;
G
H
RQ
"4
&+
$P
#0
("
,20
'$
P
..
"4
2&
02"
/$
?
0*
*,
2/
8$
S
,"
#@
K$&
/-
$?
D
S
K$0
"$
*L
@+
&2
/$

0(
*$
4"
/0
*/
0$"
3$0
(*
$.
0,
&0
*8
'$
2/
$%
",
*$
-*
0&
2+K
$&
/-
$<
*$
<
2++
$1
*$
3"
++"
<
2/
8$
#@
$.
("
,0
+'
$<
20(
$-
2.
4#
..
2"
/.
$&
1"
#0
$2/
)"
+)
2/
8$
QP
.$
2/
$0(
*$

2%
@+
*%
*/
0&
02"
/E

F
(&
/O
$'
"#
$0"
$&
++$
"3
$'
"#
$<
("
$(
&)
*$
1*
*/
$2/
$0"
#4
(E
$T
/-
*,
.0
&/
-&
1+
'K
$0(
*,
*$
(&
.$
1*
*/
$+"
0.
$"
3$2
/0
*,
*.
0$2
/$
0(
*$
/*
<
$.
0,
&0
*8
'$
3,
"%
$+"
4&
+$

&#
0(
",
202
*.
$4
"+
+*
&8
#*
.$
&4
,"
..
$0(
*$
4"
#/
0,
'$
U$
@&
,0
24
#+
&,
+'
$&
1"
#0
$0(
*$
.2
/8
+*
$3,
&#
-$
2/
)*
.0
28
&0
2"
/$
.*
,)
24
*E
$I$
("
@*
$'
"#
$<
2++
$:
/-
$0(
2.
$

)*
,.
2"
/$
"3
$V7
9
$;
2,*
40
$?
@*
42
&+
6$(
*+
@3
#+
K$&
.$
20$
3"
4#
.*
.$
."
+*
+'
$"
/$
0(
*$
.0
,&
0*
8'
$&
/-
$.
**
O.
$0"
$&
/.
<
*,
$0(
*$
W#
*.
02"
/.
$%
&/
'$
"3
$'
"#
$(
&)
*$

,&
2.
*-
E$I
3$'
"#
$(
&)
*$
&/
'$
W#
*,
2*
.$
@+
*&
.*
$4
"/
0&
40
$ 5
60
,
(
76
6*
6'
/"
60
"7
)
89

(
&
#
')
/2
')
*
+'
,
-

I$+
""
O$
3"
,<
&,
-$
0"
$<
",
O2
/8
$<
20(
$'
"#
$&
.$
<
*$
0&
O*
$3"
,<
&,
-$
0(
*.
*$
2/
202
&0
2)
*.
E

;
&)
2-
$9
&,
,$
U$
7
*&
-$
"3
$=
,&
#-
$&
/-
$>
,,
",
$?
0,
&0
*8
'$
;
2)
2.
2"
/

:
:::
:;
<
02
1$:
56
0,
(
76
6*
6'/
"6
0"
7)
89

(
&
#
')
/2
')
*
+'
,
-

=
12.
-:
5*
6:<
*6
7:
23
5*
6<
0"
2*
3:
*3
:>
2/
"6
2?
,"
2*
3:
73
@,
26
27
/:
A:
;
3@
,2
62
7/
:0
?*
,"
:#
,?
12/
!2
3)
:0
6"
2.
17
/:
A:
=
*3
"0
."
/:
0"
:>
B
C

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

fo
r 

W
or

k 
an

d 
Pe

ns
io

ns
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 L

A
s 

Fr
au

d 
an

d 
Er

ro
r 

Sp
ec

ia
l S

up
pl

em
en

t 
• 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

10

109



H
ou

sin
g 

Be
ne

fit
 D

ir
ec

t
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
fo

r 
W

or
k 

an
d 

Pe
ns

io
ns

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 L
A

s 
Fr

au
d 

an
d 

Er
ro

r 
• 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

10
2

Th
e 

ne
w

 F
ra

ud
 a

nd
 E

rr
or

 S
tr

at
eg

y

7
"<
$-
2-
$20
$&
++$
.0
&,
0X
$P
.$
."
%
*$
"3
$'
"#
$%
&'
$O
/"
<
K$*
&,
+2*
,$
2/
$0(
*$

'*
&,
K$0
(*
$;
G
H
$1
*8
&/
$<
",
O$
"/
$-
*)
*+
"@
2/
8$
&$
/*
<
$3,
&#
-$
&/
-$

*,
,"
,$
.0
,&
0*
8'
E$

7
"<
*)
*,
K$2
/$
0(
*$
.#
%
%
*,
K$0
(*
$H
,2%
*$
A
2/
2.
0*
,$
&.
O*
-$
0(
*$
;
G
HK
$

&+
"/
8$
<
20(
$7
A
$N
*)
*/
#*
$&
/-
$M
#.
0"
%
.$
Y7
A
N
M
ZK
$0"
$-
*)
*+
"@
$

&$
/*
<
$J"
2/
0$=
,&
#-
$&
/-
$>
,,
",
$?
0,
&0
*8
'E
$F
(2
.$
*/
&1
+*
-$
#.
$0"
$

1,
"&
-*
/$
0(
*$
.4
"@
*$
"3
$<
",
O$
0(
&0
$<
*$
(&
-$
&+
,*
&-
'$
1*
8#
/E

F
(*
$/
*<
$.
0,
&0
*8
'K
$<
(2
4(
$,
*@
,*
.*
/0
.$
&$
.0
*@
$4
(&
/8
*$
2/
$"
#,
$

:8
(0
$&
8&
2/
.0
$3,
&#
-$
&/
-$
*,
,"
,K$
<
2++

[$
(*
+@
$0"
$*
W#
2@
$.
0&
33$
<
20(
$&
$,
&/
8*
$"
3$0
""
+.
$&
/-
$@
"<
*,
.$
0"
$

0&
4O
+*
$3,
&#
-$
&/
-$
*,
,"
,

[$
2/
0,
"-
#4
*$
&$
,&
/8
*$
"3
$0"
#8
(*
,$
.&
/4
02"
/.
$0"
$@
#/
2.
($
0(
".
*$

<
("
$4
"%
%
20$
3,
&#
-$
%
",
*$
(&
,.
(+
'

[$
2/
4,
*&
.*
$0(
*$
#.
*$
"3
$0(
2,-
$@
&,
0'
$-
&0
&$
&/
-$
2/
0,
"-
#4
*$

2/
/"
)&
02)
*$
&/
&+
'0
24
&+
$0*
4(
/2
W#
*.
$0"
$,
*-
#4
*$
3,
&#
-$
&/
-$
*,
,"
,

[$
#.
*$
,*
&+
$02
%
*$
-&
0&
$&
0$0
(*
$@
"2
/0
$"
3$4
+&
2%
$1
*3
",
*$
3,
&#
-$
&/
-$

*,
,"
,$
4&
/$
*/
0*
,$
0(
*$
.'
.0
*%

F
(*
$.
0,
&0
*8
'$
.*
0.
$"
#0
$&
$,
&/
8*
$"
3$/
*<
$%
*&
.#
,*
.$
3"
,$
;
G
HK
$

QP
.$
&/
-$
7
A
N
M
E$I
0$2
.$
1&
.*
-$
&,
"#
/-
$:
)*
$*
+*
%
*/
0.
\$H
,*
)*
/0
K$

;
*0
*4
0K$
M
",
,*
40
K$H
#/
2.
($
&/
-$
;
*0
*,
$&
/-
$0(
*$
2/
202
&0
2)
*.
$<
(2
4(
$

.2
0$-
2,*
40
+'
$1
*/
*&
0(
$0(
*%
$&
,*
$*
L@
*4
0*
-$
0"
$,
*-
#4
*$
0(
*$
+*
)*
+$"
3$

3,
&#
-$
&/
-$
*,
,"
,$
1'
$"
)*
,$
]^
_
$Y
`B
Ea
1/
Z$
1'
$]
bB
^E

F
(*
$O
*'
$%
*&
.#
,*
.$
&,
*

[$
=
",
%
2/
8$
&$
.2
/8
+*
$3,
&#
-$
2/
)*
.0
28
&0
2"
/$
.*
,)
24
*$

[$
>
%
@+
"'
2/
8$
")
*,
$]
bb
$/
*<
$&
/0
2c3
,&
#-
$"
3:
4*
,.
$0"
$-
*0
*4
0$3
,&
#-
$

[$
M
,*
&0
2/
8$
&$
/*
<
$%
"1
2+*
$,
*8
2"
/&
+$0
&.
O$
3"
,4
*$
0"
$2/
)*
.0
28
&0
*$

*&
4(
$&
/-
$*
)*
,'
$4
+&
2%
$2/
$(
28
($
3,
&#
-$
&,
*&
.$

$
P
1"
+2.
(2
/8
$4
&#
02"
/.
$&
.$
&$
@*
/&
+0'
$3"
,$
3,
&#
-

$
I/
4,
*&
.2
/8
$&
..
*0
$.
*2
d#
,*
$

$
9
,2/
82
/8
$2/
$&
$/
*<
$0"
#8
(*
,$
"/
*c
.0
,2O
*K
$0<
"$
.0
,2O
*$
&/
-$
0(
,*
*c

.0
,2O
*$
,#
+*
.K
$2/
4+
#-
2/
8$
0(
,*
*$
'*
&,
$+"
..
$"
3$1
*/
*:
0$3
",
$@
*"
@+
*$

<
("
$&
,*
$4
"/
)2
40
*-
$"
3$.
*,
2"
#.
$3,
&#
-$

$
I%
@"
.2
/8
$&
$%
2/
2%
#%
$3,
&#
-$
@*
/&
+0'
$c
$`
e^
b

$
I/
0,
"-
#4
2/
8$
M
2)
2+$
H
*/
&+
02*
.$
c$
`^
b$
3"
,$
4#
.0
"%
*,
$/
*8
+28
*/
4*
$

$
G
",
O2
/8
$4
+"
.*
+'
$<
20(
$M
,2%
*.
0"
@@
*,
.$

$
5
&%
2/
8$
&/
-$
.(
&%
2/
8$
3,
&#
-.
0*
,.
$2/
$+"
4&
+$&
,*
&.

*$
*L
@*
40
$%
".
0$"
3$0
(*
$/
*<
$%
*&
.#
,*
.$
0"
$.
0&
,0
$3,
"%
$]
bB
]R
Be
$

(2
4(
$0&
O*
.$
2/
0"
$&
44
"#
/0
$0(
*$
/*
*-
$3"
,$
@,
"4
#,
*%
*/
0$&
/-
$

(&
/8
*.
$0"
$0(
*$
+*
82
.+
&0
2"
/E
$F
(*
,*
$2.
$%
#4
($
<
",
O$
0"
$1
*$
-"
/*
$

"$
f*
.(
$"
#0
$0(
*$
-*
0&
2+$
&/
-$
<
*$
<
&/
0$0
"$
<
",
O$
<
20(
$'
"#
,$
Q"
4&
+$

#0
("
,20
'$
P
..
"4
2&
02"
/.
$&
/-
$Q
P
$,
*@
,*
.*
/0
&0
2)
*.
$2/
$0&
O2
/8
$0(
*$

/2
02&
02)
*.
$3"
,<
&,
-E
$

[ [ [ [ [ [ [ G < 4 0 P 2

110



H
ou

sin
g 

Be
ne

fit
 D

ir
ec

t
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
fo

r 
W

or
k 

an
d 

Pe
ns

io
ns

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 L
A

s 
Fr

au
d 

an
d 

Er
ro

r 
• 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

10
3

Q
ue

st
io

ns
 a

nd
 a

ns
w

er
s

W
ha

t 
w

ill
 t

he
 s

in
gl

e 
fr

au
d 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
do

?
F
(*
$.
2/
8+
*$
3,
&#
-$
2/
)*
.0
28
&0
2"
/$
.*
,)
24
*$
<
2++
$2/
)*
.0
28
&0
*$
<
*+
3&
,*
$3,
&#
-$
&4
,"
..
$&
++$
1*
/*
:0
.$
&/
-$
F&
L$
M
,*
-2
0.
$&
-%
2/
2.
0*
,*
-$
1'
$;
G
HK
$

7
A
N
M
$&
/-
$Q
P
.E
$F
(2
.$
<
2++
$2/
4,
*&
.*
$*
3:
42
*/
4'
$&
/-
$4
"/
.2
.0
*/
4'
$"
3$4
,2%
2/
&+
$2/
)*
.0
28
&0
2"
/.
E

F
(*
$2/
0*
/0
2"
/$
2.
$0"
$4
,*
&0
*$
"/
*$
3,
&#
-$
2/
)*
.0
28
&0
2"
/$
.*
,)
24
*$
4"
)*
,2/
8$
&+
+$1
*/
*:
0.
$&
/-
$4
,*
-2
0.
$2/
4+
#-
2/
8$
7
"#
.2
/8
$9
*/
*:
0E$
F
(2
.$

<
"#
+-
$2/
4+
#-
*$
QP
$7
"#
.2
/8
$9
*/
*:
0$3
,&
#-
$3#
/4
02"
/.
E$T
/2
)*
,.
&+
$M
,*
-2
0$<
2++
$,
*@
+&
4*
$<
",
O2
/8
$&
8*
$1
*/
*:
0.
$.
0&
,0
2/
8$
2/
$]
bB
e$
&/
-$
<
2++
$

(*
+@
$0"
$-
,2)
*$
.2
8/
2:
4&
/0
$3,
&#
-$
&/
-$
*,
,"
,$
.&
)2
/8
.$
0(
,"
#8
($
,&
-2
4&
+$.
2%
@+
2:
4&
02"
/$
"3
$0(
*$
<
*+
3&
,*
$.
'.
0*
%
E$F
(*
$S
")
*,
/%
*/
0$(
&.
$

&/
/"
#/
4*
-$
@+
&/
.$
3"
,$
M
"#
/4
2+$
F&
L$
9
*/
*:
0$0
"$
1*
$,
*@
+&
4*
-$
3,
"%
$P
@,
2+$
]b
Be
$1
'$
+"
4&
+$.
4(
*%
*.
K$-
*.
28
/*
-$
&/
-$
&-
%
2/
2.
0*
,*
-$
1'
$Q
P
.K
$

0(
*$
-*
0&
2+.
$"
3$<
(2
4(
$&
,*
$'
*0
$0"
$1
*$
-*
42
-*
-E

F
(*
$.
0,
&0
*8
'$
2/
0*
/-
.$
0(
&0
$0(
*$
/*
<
$.
2/
8+
*$
3,
&#
-$
2/
)*
.0
28
&0
2"
/$
.*
,)
24
*$
<
2++
$1
*$
2/
$@
+&
4*
$3,
"%
$]
bB
eK
$,
*&
-'
$3"
,$
0(
*$
2/
0,
"-
#4
02"
/$
"3
$

T
/2
)*
,.
&+
$M
,*
-2
0E$
A
#4
($
<
",
O$
/*
*-
.$
0"
$1
*$
-"
/*
$0"
$+"
"O
$&
0$0
(*
$-
*0
&2
+$&
/-
$<
*$
<
2++
$<
",
O$
<
20(
$Q
"4
&+
$P
#0
("
,20
'$
P
..
"4
2&
02"
/.
$&
/-
$Q
P
$

,*
@.
$2/
$0&
O2
/8
$0(
&0
$3"
,<
&,
-E

H
ow

 w
ill

 t
he

 s
in

gl
e 

fr
au

d 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

be
 f

or
m

ed
?

9
'$
4"
%
12
/2
/8
$0(
*$
1*
/*
:0
K$&
/-
$0&
L$
4,
*-
20K
$3,
&#
-$
2/
)*
.0
28
&0
2"
/$
,*
."
#,
4*
.$
"3
$;
G
HK
$Q
P
.$
&/
-$
7
A
N
M
E$P
+.
"K
$0(
*$
S
")
*,
/%
*/
0$2
.$

3#
/-
2/
8$
&/
$&
--
202
"/
&+
$]
bb
$3,
&#
-$
2/
)*
.0
28
&0
",
$@
".
0.
E$F
(*
$2/
0*
/0
2"
/$
2.
$0(
&0
$Q
P
$1
*/
*:
0$3
,&
#-
$2/
)*
.0
28
&0
",
.$
<
2++
$1
*4
"%
*$
@&
,0
$"
3$0
(*
$

.2
/8
+*
$3,
&#
-$
2/
)*
.0
28
&0
2"
/$
.*
,)
24
*$
<
(*
/$
20$
2.
$3"
,%
*-
$2/
$]
bB
eE
$D
@0
2"
/.
$3"
,$
2/
0*
8,
&0
2/
8$
QP
$2/
)*
.0
28
&0
",
.$
<
2++
$1
*$
-2
.4
#.
.*
-$
<
20(
$

0(
*$
QP
$P
..
"4
2&
02"
/.
E$F
(*
$G
(2
0*
$H
&@
*,
$VT
/2
)*
,.
&+
$M
,*
-2
0\$
<
*+
3&
,*
$0(
&0
$<
",
O.
6$@
#1
+2.
(*
-$
"/
$B
B0
($
5
")
*%
1*
,$
]b
Bb
$&
//
"#
/4
*-
$

0(
&0
$-
*+
2)
*,
'$
"3
$T
/2
)*
,.
&+
$M
,*
-2
0$<
2++
$1
*$
0(
*$
,*
.@
"/
.2
12
+20
'$
"3
$;
G
HE
$G
*$
<
2++
$+"
"O
$&
0$<
(*
,*
$1
*.
0K$
#/
-*
,$
;
G
HK
$0(
*$
.2
/8
+*
$3,
&#
-$

2/
)*
.0
28
&0
2"
/$
.*
,)
24
*$
.(
"#
+-
$.
20$
&.
$"
@0
2"
/.
$3"
,$
-*
+2)
*,
'$
"3
$T
/2
)*
,.
&+
$M
,*
-2
0$&
,*
$-
*)
*+
"@
*-
E$

D
oe

s 
cr

ea
ti

ng
 a

 s
in

gl
e 

fr
au

d 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

m
ea

n 
th

at
 L

A
s’

 F
ra

ud
 In

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
e 

ca
n 

st
ar

t 
in

ve
st

ig
at

in
g 

ta
x 

cr
ed

it
 f

ra
ud

? 
5
"E
$;
2.
4#
..
2"
/.
$<
2++
$/
**
-$
0"
$0&
O*
$@
+&
4*
$1
*0
<
**
/$
;
G
HK
$7
A
N
M
$&
/-
$Q
P
.$
0"
$(
*+
@$
*.
0&
1+
2.
($
0(
*$
/*
<
$.
2/
8+
*$
2/
)*
.0
28
&0
2"
/$
.*
,)
24
*$

1'
$]
bB
eE
$A
*&
/<
(2
+*
K$&
.$
<
*+
+$&
.$
4"
/0
2/
#2
/8
$<
20(
$*
L2
.0
2/
8$
&,
,&
/8
*%
*/
0.
$3"
,$
2/
)*
.0
28
&0
2"
/$
<
*$
&,
*$
&+
."
$+"
"O
2/
8$
0"
$*
/(
&/
4*
$J"
2/
0$

<
",
O2
/8
$&
4,
".
.$
;
G
H
RQ
P
.R
7
A
N
M
E

111



H
ou

sin
g 

Be
ne

fit
 D

ir
ec

t
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
fo

r 
W

or
k 

an
d 

Pe
ns

io
ns

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 L
A

s 
Fr

au
d 

an
d 

Er
ro

r 
• 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

10
4

Q
ue

st
io

ns
 a

nd
 a

ns
w

er
s

W
ill

 t
he

 s
in

gl
e 

fr
au

d 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

co
ve

r 
ot

he
r 

(i.
e.

 n
on

 b
en

efi
t)

 f
ra

ud
s 

ag
ai

ns
t 

LA
s?

F
(*
$,
*%
20$
"3
$0(
*$
/*
<
$.
2/
8+
*$
3,
&#
-$
2/
)*
.0
28
&0
2"
/$
.*
,)
24
*$
<
2++
$4
")
*,
$1
*/
*:
0.
K$0
&L
$4
,*
-2
0.
$&
/-
$T
/2
)*
,.
&+
$M
,*
-2
0E$
7
"<
*)
*,
K$<
*$

,*
4"
8/
2.
*$
0(
&0
$.
"%
*$
QP
$3,
&#
-$
2/
)*
.0
28
&0
",
.$
-*
&+
$<
20(
$%
",
*$
0(
&/
$1
*/
*:
0$3
,&
#-
E$G
*$
<
2++
$0&
O*
$0(
&0
$2/
0"
$&
44
"#
/0
$2/
$-
2.
4#
..
2"
/.
$

<
20(
$0(
*$
QP
$P
..
"4
2&
02"
/.
E

W
ill

 a
nt

i f
ra

ud
 a

ct
iv

it
y 

be
 p

ro
te

ct
ed

 f
ro

m
 c

ut
s?

F
(*
$.
0,
&0
*8
'$
<
2++
$2/
4,
*&
.*
$2/
)*
.0
%
*/
0$2
/$
0&
4O
+2/
8$
3,
&#
-$
&/
-$
*,
,"
,$
&0
$&
$02
%
*$
<
(*
/$
%
&/
'$
"0
(*
,$
&,
*&
.$
"3
$*
L@
*/
-2
0#
,*
$&
,*
$1
*2
/8
$

,*
-#
4*
-E
$7
"<
*)
*,
$0(
*$
.0
,&
0*
8'
$&
2%
.$
0"
$-
*+
2)
*,
$.
28
/2
:4
&/
0$,
*-
#4
02"
/$
2/
$+"
..
*.
$0"
$3,
&#
-$
&/
-$
*,
,"
,$
1'
$]
bB
^$
0(
*,
*1
'$
4"
/0
,21
#0
2/
8$
0"
$

")
*,
&+
+$*
L@
*/
-2
0#
,*
$.
&)
2/
8.
E

W
ha

t 
is

 t
he

 In
te

gr
at

ed
 R

is
k 

an
d 

In
te

lli
ge

nc
e 

Se
rv

ic
e 

(IR
IS

)?
I0$
2.
$&
$4
*/
0,
&+
$(
#1
$<
(2
4(
$8
&0
(*
,.
$&
/-
$@
,"
4*
..
*.
$-
&0
&$
&/
-$
2/
0*
++2
8*
/4
*$
"/
$3,
&#
-K
$*
,,
",
$&
/-
$-
*1
0E$
I0$
<
2++
$+"
"O
$0"
$%
&O
*$
0(
*$
%
".
0$

"3
$&
/&
+'
.2
.$
&/
-$
%
&L
2%
2.
*$
@*
,3
",
%
&/
4*
$2/
$&
/0
2c3
,&
#-
$&
/-
$*
,,
",
$&
40
2)
202
*.
E$I
0$<
2++
$#
.*
$0(
*$
+&
0*
.0
$,
2.
O$
@,
":
+2/
8$
&/
-$
-&
0&
$&
/&
+'
024
.$

0*
4(
/2
W#
*.
$0"
$@
,2"
,20
2.
*$
"#
,$
(2
8(
*.
0$,
2.
O$
4&
.*
.E

IN
I?
$<
2++
$3"
4#
.$
"/
\$8
*0
02/
8$
,2-
$"
3$*
L2
.0
2/
8$
3,
&#
-$
&/
-$
*,
,"
,$
2/
$0(
*$
.'
.0
*%
g$(
28
(+
28
(0
2/
8$
,2.
O.
$&
0$0
(*
$.
0&
,0
$"
3$0
(*
$4
+&
2%
.$
@,
"4
*.
.g
$

&/
-$
&.
.2
.0
$<
20(
$"
/8
"2
/8
$4
&.
*$
%
&/
&8
*%
*/
0$)
2&
$.
'.
0*
%
$&
+*
,0
.E
$I0
$<
2++
$@
+&
'$
&$
+*
&-
$,
"+
*$
2/
$4
""
,-
2/
&0
2/
8$
0(
*$
&4
W#
2.
202
"/
$&
/-
$#
.*
$"
3$

M
,*
-2
0$N
*3
*,
*/
4*
$P
8*
/4
'$
&/
-$
&/
'$
"0
(*
,$
0(
2,-
$@
&,
0'
$.
*,
)2
4*
$"
,$
-&
0&
$2/
$&
/0
2c3
,&
#-
$&
/-
$*
,,
",
$&
40
2)
202
*.
$3"
,$
1"
0(
$0(
*$
4#
,,
*/
0$1
*/
*:
0.
$

&/
-$
0&
L$
4,
*-
20.
$.
'.
0*
%
$&
/-
$3"
,$
T
/2
)*
,.
&+
$M
,*
-2
0.
E$F
(2
.$
<
2++
$-
,2)
*$
4"
#/
0*
,$
3,
&#
-$
&/
-$
*,
,"
,$
&4
02)
202
*.
$0"
$"
@0
2%
2.
*$
0(
*$
)&
+#
*$
3"
,$

%
"/
*'
$"
3$"
#,
$*
33"
,0
E

W
ha

t 
ab

ou
t 

D
at

a 
Pr

ot
ec

ti
on

 Is
su

es
? 

H
,"
@"
.&
+.
$<
2++
$1
*$
-2
.4
#.
.*
-$
<
20(
$0(
*$
I/
3"
,%
&0
2"
/$
M
"%
%
2.
.2
"/
*,
6.
$D
3:
4*
$0"
$*
/.
#,
*$
0(
*'
$.
&0
2.
3'
$-
&0
&$
@,
"0
*4
02"
/$
+*
82
.+
&0
2"
/$
&/
-$

.&
3*
8#
&,
-.
E$

112



H
ou

sin
g 

Be
ne

fit
 D

ir
ec

t
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
fo

r 
W

or
k 

an
d 

Pe
ns

io
ns

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 L
A

s 
Fr

au
d 

an
d 

Er
ro

r 
• 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

10
5

Q
ue

st
io

ns
 a

nd
 a

ns
w

er
s

W
ha

t 
is

 t
he

 M
ob

ile
 R

eg
io

na
l T

as
k 

Fo
rc

e 
an

d 
w

ha
t 

do
es

 it
 a

im
 t

o 
ac

hi
ev

e?
F
(*
$A
"1
2+*
$N
*8
2"
/&
+$F
&.
O$
=
",
4*
$2.
$&
$0&
.O
$3"
,4
*$
0"
$4
(*
4O
$&
/-
$4
",
,*
40
$4
+&
2%
.$
2/
$.
@*
42
:4
$8
*"
8,
&@
(2
4$
+"
4&
02"
/.
E$D
#,
$&
2%
.$
&,
*$
0"
$

,&
2.
*$
0(
*$
@,
":
+*
$"
3$4
"#
/0
*,
$3,
&#
-$
&4
02)
20'
$&
/-
$-
*0
*,
$3#
0#
,*
$3,
&#
-E
$F
(2
.$
&4
02)
20'
$<
2++
$1
*$
.#
@@
",
0*
-$
1'
$+"
4&
+$%
*-
2&
$4
&%
@&
28
/.
$0"
$

.*
/-
$"
#0
$&
/$
2%
@"
,0
&/
0$%
*.
.&
8*
$0"
$3,
&#
-.
0*
,.
E$F
(*
$F
&.
O$
=
",
4*
$<
2++
$*
)*
/0
#&
++'
$1
*$
-,
2)
*/
$1
'$
0(
*$
I/
0*
8,
&0
*-
$N
2.
O$
&/
-$
I/
0*
++2
8*
/4
*$

?
*,
)2
4*
E

W
ha

t 
ar

e 
ou

r 
pl

an
s 

fo
r 

lo
ca

l m
ed

ia
 c

am
pa

ig
ns

?
G
*$
&,
*$
@+
&/
/2
/8
$0"
$-
*+
2)
*,
$+"
4&
+$@
#1
+24
20'
$,
*%
2/
-2
/8
$4
#.
0"
%
*,
.$
"3
$0(
*2
,$
,*
.@
"/
.2
12
+20
2*
.$
&/
-$
0(
*$
4"
/.
*W
#*
/4
*.
$"
3$8
*0
02/
8$
4&
#8
(0
$

3"
,$
1*
/*
:0
$3,
&#
-E
$P
.$
@&
,0
$"
3$"
#,
$4
"%
%
#/
24
&0
2"
/.
$.
0,
&0
*8
'K
$<
*$
&,
*$
&+
."
$@
+&
//
2/
8$
0"
$2/
0,
"-
#4
*$
V/
&%
2/
8$
&/
-$
.(
&%
2/
86
$2/
$+"
4&
+$

&,
*&
.E
$G
*$
<
2++
$1
*$
<
",
O2
/8
$<
20(
$+"
4&
+$&
#0
("
,20
2*
.$
0"
$-
*)
*+
"@
$0(
2.
$.
0,
&0
*8
'E
$

W
ha

t 
ch

an
ge

s 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

m
ad

e 
to

 m
ak

e 
th

e 
sa

nc
ti

on
s 

re
gi

m
es

 t
ou

gh
er

?
G
*$
&,
*$
@+
&/
/2
/8
$0"
$2%
@+
*%
*/
0$&
$,
&/
8*
$"
3$0
"#
8(
*,
$.
&/
40
2"
/.
$3"
,$
0(
".
*$
0(
&0
$3&
2+$
0"
$,
*@
",
0$4
(&
/8
*.
$2/
$4
2,4
#%
.0
&/
4*
$"
,$
4"
%
%
20$

3,
&#
-E
$F
(*
.*
$2/
4+
#-
*\

[$
$I/
0,
"-
#4
2/
8$
&$
%
2/
2%
#%
$@
*/
&+
0'
$3"
,$
&+
+$3
,&
#-
.0
*,
.

[$
$I/
0,
"-
#4
2/
8$
`^
b$
42
)2
+$@
*/
&+
0'
$3"
,$
/"
0$,
*@
",
02/
8$
4(
&/
8*
.

[$
$N
*)
2*
<
2/
8$
8#
2-
*+
2/
*.
$#
.*
-$
1'
$%
&8
2.
0,
&0
*.

[$
$>
L0
*/
-2
/8
$0(
*$
+*
/8
0(
$"
3$+
".
.$
"3
$1
*/
*:
0$@
#/
2.
(%
*/
0.
$3"
,$
"/
*$
&/
-$
0<
"$
.0
,2O
*.

[$
$I/
0,
"-
#4
2/
8$
&$
0(
2,-
$.
0,
2O
*$
3"
,$
.*
,2"
#.
$3,
&#
-$
4&
.*
.

W
ha

t 
ar

e 
th

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 t

o 
th

e 
Fr

au
d 

H
ot

lin
e 

an
d 

w
hy

 a
re

 w
e 

do
in

g 
it

?
G
*$
<
&/
0$0
"$
*/
4"
#,
&8
*$
%
",
*$
)&
+#
&1
+*
$4
&+
+.
$0"
$0(
*$
7
"0
+2/
*$
1'
$,
*<
&,
-2
/8
$0(
*$
@#
1+
24
$3"
,$
#.
*3
#+
$,
*3
*,
,&
+.
$&
/-
$&
,*
$4
"/
.2
-*
,2/
8$

@+
&4
2/
8$
&/
$"
1+
28
&0
2"
/$
"/
$0(
".
*$
<
("
$(
&)
*$
2/
3"
,%
&0
2"
/$
&1
"#
0$&
$3,
&#
-$
0"
$,
*@
",
0$2
0E$
F
(2
.$
<
2++
$1
#2
+-
$"
/$
0(
*$
4#
,,
*/
0$.
#4
4*
..
$"
3$0
(*
$

("
0+2
/*
E

113



H
ou

sin
g 

Be
ne

fit
 D

ir
ec

t
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
fo

r 
W

or
k 

an
d 

Pe
ns

io
ns

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 L
A

s 
Fr

au
d 

an
d 

Er
ro

r 
• 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

10
6

Q
ue

st
io

ns
 a

nd
 a

ns
w

er
s

W
hy

 a
re

 w
e 

es
ta

bl
is

hi
ng

 a
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
p 

w
it

h 
Cr

im
es

to
pp

er
s 

an
d 

w
ha

t 
do

es
 it

 a
im

 t
o 

ac
hi

ev
e?

M
,2%
*.
0"
@@
*,
.$
2.
$&
/$
2/
-*
@*
/-
*/
0$4
(&
,20
'$
<
(2
4(
$0&
O*
.$
&/
"/
'%
"#
.$
4&
++.
$3,
"%
$4
#.
0"
%
*,
.$
@,
")
2-
2/
8$
2/
3"
,%
&0
2"
/$
&1
"#
0$4
,2%
*E
$

I0.
$b
Cb
b$
^^
^$
BB
B$
+2/
*$
2.
$"
@*
/$
]a
$(
"#
,.
$&
$-
&'
K$h
$-
&'
.$
&$
<
**
OE
$M
,2%
*.
0"
@@
*,
.$
4&
/$
%
&O
*$
:/
&/
42
&+
$&
<
&,
-.
$"
3$1
*0
<
**
/$
`^
b$
&/
-$

`B
Kb
bb
$3"
,$
2/
3"
,%
&0
2"
/$
,*
4*
2)
*-
$2/
$4
*,
0&
2/
$4
2,4
#%
.0
&/
4*
.E

M
,2%
*.
0"
@@
*,
.$
2.
$@
+&
//
2/
8$
&$
%
&J
",
$/
&0
2"
/&
+$4
&%
@&
28
/$
&8
&2
/.
0$@
#1
+24
$.
*4
0"
,$
3,
&#
-$
2/
$*
&,
+'
$]
bB
B$
&/
-$
;
G
H
$&
/-
$7
A
N
M
$<
2++
$<
",
O$

4+
".
*+
'$
<
20(
$0(
*%
$0"
$%
&L
2%
2.
*$
0(
*$
2%
@&
40
$"
3$0
(*
$4
&%
@&
28
/$
"/
$1
*/
*:
0$3
,&
#-
E$;
G
H
$&
/-
$7
A
N
M
$<
2++
$.
**
O$
0"
$1
#2
+-
$"
/$
&/
-$
-*
)*
+"
@$

0(
2.
$,
*+
&0
2"
/.
(2
@$
3#
,0
(*
,E

W
ha

t 
ar

e 
th

e 
ti

m
es

ca
le

s 
fo

r 
ch

an
ge

?
F
(*
,*
$&
,*
$/
"$
2%
%
*-
2&
0*
$4
(&
/8
*.
$0"
$0(
*$
<
&'
$0(
&0
$<
*$
<
2++
$2/
)*
.0
28
&0
*$
",
$.
&/
40
2"
/$
1*
/*
:0
$3,
&#
-K
$.
"$
&0
$0(
2.
$.
0&
8*
$<
*$
<
2++
$4
"/
02/
#*
$

0"
$3"
++"
<
$*
L2
.0
2/
8$
@,
"4
*.
.*
.$
&/
-$
@,
"4
*-
#,
*.
$U
$2/
4+
#-
2/
8$
.0
2++
$&
-%
2/
2.
0*
,2/
8$
4&
#0
2"
/.
E

P
.$
<
",
O$
1*
82
/.
$"
/$
-*
)*
+"
@2
/8
$0(
*$
@,
"J
*4
0.
$2/
$%
",
*$
-*
0&
2+$
02%
*.
4&
+*
.$
<
2++
$1
*4
"%
*$
4+
*&
,*
,E$
7
"<
*)
*,
$<
*$
-"
$O
/"
<
$0(
&0
$%
".
0$

2/
202
&0
2)
*.
$<
2++
$/
"0
$.
0&
,0
$#
/0
2+$
]b
B]
E$=
",
$*
L&
%
@+
*\

[$
.#
1J
*4
0$0
"$
+*
82
.+
&0
2"
/K
$3,
"%
$]
bB
]$
<
*$
<
2++
$+"
"O
$0"
$.
0&
,0
$2%
@+
*%
*/
02/
8$
@"
<
*,
.$
0"
$2%
@"
.*
$0"
#8
(*
,$
.&
/4
02"
/.
E$

[$
2/
$]
bB
e$
<
*$
<
2++
$1
*8
2/
$0(
*$
<
",
O$
"3
$&
$.
2/
8+
*$
2/
)*
.0
28
&0
2"
/$
.*
,)
24
*$
*%
@"
<
*,
*-
$0"
$2/
)*
.0
28
&0
*$
1"
0(
$1
*/
*:
0$&
/-
$0&
L$
4,
*-
20$
4&
.*
.E
$

G
*$
<
2++
$<
",
O$
<
20(
$+"
4&
+$&
#0
("
,20
2*
.$
&/
-$
7
A
N
M
$0"
$-
*)
*+
"@
$0(
*.
*$
@+
&/
.E

H
ow

 w
ill

 y
ou

 in
vo

lv
e 

LA
s 

in
 t

ak
in

g 
th

is
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

fo
rw

ar
d?

G
*$
<
2++
$1
*$
4"
/.
#+
02/
8$
0(
*$
QP
$P
..
"4
2&
02"
/.
$"
/$
0(
*$
-*
0&
2+$
"3
$0(
*$
2/
202
&0
2)
*.
$2/
$0(
*$
.0
,&
0*
8'
$&
/-
$"
/$
@+
&/
.$
0"
$2%
@+
*%
*/
0$0
(*
%
E$G
*$

&,
*$
.0
2++
$&
0$&
$)
*,
'$
*&
,+'
$.
0&
8*
$1
#0
$<
2++
$1
*$
O*
*/
$0"
$(
&)
*$
QP
$2/
@#
0$0
"$
0(
*$
)&
,2"
#.
$@
,"
J*
40
.$
<
*$
<
2++
$1
*$
.*
002
/8
$#
@$
0"
$2%
@+
*%
*/
0$0
(*
$

.0
,&
0*
8'
E$

I3$
'"
#$
(&
)*
$&
/'
$W
#*
.0
2"
/.
$@
+*
&.
*$
*c
%
&2
+$

$
$$$
$;
<
02
1$
:5
60
,
(
76
6*
6'
/"
60
"7
)
89

(
&
#
')
/2
')
*
+'
,
-

114



 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 4 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Asbestos Management Arrangements 
in Schools, following the Asbestos 
Incident at Norbury First & Middle 
School on the 19th June 2010 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

115



 
Executive Summary 
 
The decision was taken to close Norbury First and Middle School on the 20th June 2010 
after asbestos debris was noticed on the floor of the boiler room at the school by a 
representative of European Asbestos Services (EAS). 
 
The EAS employee was attending the site to carry out remedial works to encapsulate the 
ceiling in the boiler room. He was joined by a representative from Asbestos Solutions, who 
was there to provide background air testing during the remedial works and re-assurance air 
testing on completion of the works. 
 
At this time, in preparation for the remedial works and to facilitate access for EAS, the 
Norbury School Caretaker and the Caretaker from Marlborough First and Middle School 
were clearing the boiler room of materials and equipment (paint, ladders etc). 
 
It was at this point that the EAS representative noticed asbestos debris; it appeared to have 
originated from the door surround at the entrance to the boiler room. The decision was 
taken to stop the clearance of the boiler room and the planned work was cancelled. 
 
Static air monitoring was carried out in the boiler room, the readings were acceptable and 
below the permitted thresholds. To seal the boiler room, tape and warning notices were 
erected and it was locked shut. 
 
The asbestos debris from the door surround appears to have been damaged between the 
15th and the 20th June 2010, as this damage was not detected in the entrance when the 
need to encapsulate the ceiling was identified. It is possible that the damage occurred when 
the Caretakers were clearing the boiler room in preparation for the remedial works, although 
this cannot be confirmed. 
 
When clearing the boiler room, the two Caretakers had been walking across the asbestos 
debris as they removed the materials and equipment. They may well therefore have 
disturbed the asbestos containing debris and been potentially exposed to asbestos fibres. 
 
On the 23rd June 2010, the Council made an application to the HSE for a waiver to perform 
asbestos removal in the boiler room at Norbury First and Middle School. The HSE granted 
this waiver on the 24th/25th June and the remedial work to remove the asbestos was carried 
out. 
 
On the 23rd June 2010, Vintec Ltd carried out re-assurance monitoring in 70 rooms at the 
school. This was done as a precautionary measure to ensure that there had been no 
accidental release of asbestos fibres and the readings were below the permitted threshold. 
 
On the 23rd June 2010 HSE Inspector Nicola Maisuria visited the Civic Centre to express 
concerns about asbestos management within the Council. 
 
Norbury First and Middle School re-opened on the 28th June 2010. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

116



 
On the 30th June 2010, HSE Inspector Nicola Maisuria served 3 Improvement Notices on 
Harrow Council as follows: 
 
The first Notice was served on Norbury First and Middle School, stating that Harrow Council 
had failed to:  
 

• Carry out a suitable and sufficient assessment of the presence of asbestos 
containing materials in the premises 

• Monitor the condition of any asbestos containing materials 
• Ensure that asbestos containing materials are properly maintained or where 

necessary safely removed. 
 
The deadline for completion of the required improvements is the 19th November 2010. 
 
The second and third Notices related to Vaughan First and Middle School, stating that 
Harrow Council had failed to: 
 

• Provide adequate information, instruction and training about the risks and 
precautions associated with working with asbestos containing materials  

• Ensure that the plan to manage asbestos, included suitable measures regarding 
information about the location and condition of any asbestos-containing material was 
provided to every person liable to disturb them. 

 
The initial date for the required improvements to be implemented was the 17th September 
2010, but an extension has been granted in relation to training until the 5th October 2010. 
  
Prior to these events, in March 2009 there was an incident involving Harrow Council. This 
took place at Heathlands School, where a contractor may have been exposed to asbestos. 
 
On the 22nd July 2009 HSE Inspector Nicola Maisuria visited the Civic Centre to investigate 
the Heathlands School incident. Clear breaches of health and safety legislation were 
identified, but no Improvement Notices were issued. 
 
Over the following months after the Heathlands School incident, dialogue and 
correspondence took place with the HSE Inspector. An action plan for Heathlands School 
was agreed with the Inspector in January 2010. 
 
However, progress against the agreed action plan was limited, there was poor progress 
with training, policies and procedures were not updated and there was no improvement in 
the collection, recording and communication of asbestos data.  
 
This was due to a lack of formal monitoring of the action plan by services involved and 
hence the lack of progress was neither identified nor escalated up through the organisation.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

117



On the 14th July 2010 the HSE Inspector visited the Civic Centre to agree an action plan 
with Council Management, this being in relation to responding to the Improvement Notices 
served on the Council on the 30th June 2010.  
 
The scope of works for Norbury School was agreed with the HSE Inspector. This included 
the encapsulation and labelling of material above the suspended ceilings and other high 
level areas, clearing of loose debris and other materials such as floor tiles.  
 
After the agreement of the action plan, an order was placed with Kier to organise the 
necessary plant, labour and materials to execute and complete the works at Norbury 
School. 
 
Management of Asbestos 
 
A combined action plan has been developed after the identification of the following 
shortcomings in the current asbestos management arrangements: See Appendix  
 

• The Council’s Asbestos Policy and Asbestos Code of Practice are out of date and do 
not reflect recent changes, including the introduction of HSG 264 

• A number of schools premises do not have Headteachers or nominated deputies of 
sufficient seniority who have attended premises management training. 

• Asbestos Management Plans require revision to reflect work that has been 
undertaken at schools since their issue dates and there is a need for improved 
storage and communication of data 

• The recording of the periodic monitoring of asbestos containing materials requires 
improvement and a formal process is necessary to demonstrate routine inspection 
within the school 

• The relationship between the Children’s Services Directorate and schools with 
respect to premises is defined by Statute, but subject to local agreements defining 
responsibilities. There does not appear to be a recent document outlining this 
relationship. Schools have an option to purchase a Service Level Agreement form 
the Local Authority but can choose to organise maintenance themselves using their 
devolved budget. 
In addition when schools organise maintenance / project work independently there is 
an onus on the Premises Manager to ensure that the work is performed safely and 
that corporate records are updated where necessary. Current governance 
arrangements for the management of asbestos responsibilities require a review.  

• Permit to Work forms appear to be used within schools. However, there is a danger 
that contractors are not being supplied with the correct information relating to 
asbestos, due to the failure to maintain asbestos records 

• These records need to be collated in line with the current Asset Portfolio. Data is 
currently stored in a combination of paper and database records. A review is 
required in order to improve records management 

• Health and safety governance requires revitalisation, notably the schools health and 
safety forum, which has not met for some time. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

118



 
ACTION PLAN ON THE IMPLICATIONS OF THE IMPROVEMENT NOTICES ISSUED BY HSE 
 
Improvement Notice 302693082 
 
Requirement of HSE: 
 
VAUGHAN FIRST AND MIDDLE SCHOOL 
 
• Harrow Council has failed to provide 

employees that are liable to be 
exposed to asbestos, or who 
supervise such employees, with 
adequate information, instruction and 
training about the risks and 
precautions associated with working 
with asbestos-containing materials 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Action: Improvement Notice complete 

119



Improvement Notice 302693082 contd 
 
 

Action 
 

Improvement Notice 302693121 
 
Requirement of HSE: 
 
VAUGHAN FIRST AND MIDDLE SCHOOL 
 
• Harrow Council's plan to manage 

asbestos does not include suitable 
measures to ensure that information 
about the location and condition of 
any asbestos-containing materials is 
provided to every person liable to 
disturb them. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Action:  Improvement Notice complete 

120



Improvement Notice 302693121 contd 
 

Action 
 

Recommendation Action owner & Target 
Date for Completion 
 

Comments as at 29.07.2010 Follow-on Actions 

Improvement Notice 302693121: Notice 
Complete  
Additional issues identified for Harrow 
Council 

   

6. Provide a revised and updated 
asbestos management plan and 
drawings to 4 CLASP schools. 

Mike Brown 
Kash Harbham 
 
17 November 2010. 
 

Letter to all school head 
teachers sent out 15/07/2010 

July/August 2010  
Progress report from Mike 
Brown 
 

7. Provide a revised and updated 
asbestos management plan and 
drawings for all Harrow schools. 

 

Mike Brown 
Kash Harbham 
 
End of February 2011 
 

Work programmed as Priority 
2 upon completion of CLASP 
schools. 

December 2010  
Progress report from Mike 
Brown  

121



Improvement Notice 302693121 contd 
 
 

Action 
 

Recommendation Action owner & Target 
Date for Completion 
 

Comments as at 29.07.2010 Follow-on Actions 

Improvement Notice 302693137 
 
Requirement of HSE: 
 
NORBURY FIRST AND MIDDLE SCHOOL 
 
• Carry out a suitable and sufficient 

assessment of the presence of ACMs 
in the premises 

 
Harrow Council has failed to : 

 
• Monitor the condition of any ACMs 
 
• Ensure that ACMs are properly 

maintained or, where necessary, safely 
removed. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Action: 
Improvement Notice complete 

122



 Improvement Notice 302693137 contd 
 

Action 
 

Recommendation Action owner & Target 
Date for Completion 
 

Comments as at 29.07.2010 Follow-on Actions 

10. Newly appointed Head Teacher due to 
start January 2011 will attend training 
during Autumn Term. 

H&S Mark Riordan 
Heather Clements 
 
Early 2011 
 

Summary of key points from 
meeting of 14/07/2010 

November 2010  
Check that training was carried 
out. 

11. For projects in which a building is not 
handed over as a self-contained 
construction site, Property Services to 
introduce a FastTrack Procedure to 
ensure any issues raised, while the 
contractor is in possession of the site, 
are responded to with urgency and 
priority. 

 

Mike Brown  
Steve Parker 
 
December 2010  

Initiative to improve reporting 
by CDM co-ordinator and 
client representative. 

January 2011  
Review FastTrack procedures 

12. On projects over one month, ensure 
improved priority is given within a 
Major Works project, rather than 
when CDM file is provided at the end 
of the project. 

 

Mike Brown  
Steve Parker 
 
December 2010 

Improved project monitoring 
and co-ordinating of CDM 
issues. 

January 2011  
Review alongside FastTrack 
Procedure 

 

123



ACTION PLAN ON GENERAL ISSUES AND CORPORATE PROPERTY 
 
  

Action 
 

Recommendation Action owner & Target 
Date for Completion 
 

Comments as at 29.07.2010 Follow-on Actions 

3. Develop a procedure for self-
assessment on site by specifically 
trained premises managers. 

 

Mike Brown 
Kash Harbham 
 
December 2010  

To be introduced as part of 
improved joint support in 
premises development 
between Property Team and 
Premises Managers. 
 

Progress on development to be 
closely monitored. 

3.A Monitor effectiveness of procedure for 
self assessment. 

January 2011 Ongoing QA assessment. Progress monitoring and 
reporting. 
 

4. Harrow's Corporate Property portfolio 
to include Estates and Valuers (where 
Harrow is the landlord) be incorporated 
into future asbestos management 
policy review. 

 

Mike Brown  
 
End November 2010  

Extend existing contractors' 
brief to incorporate Corporate 
Premises upon completion of 
school property. 
 

List of property to be prepared 
and reviewed. 

 

124



Action Plan on General Issues and Corporate Property contd 
 
  

Action 
 

Recommendation Action owner & Target 
Date for Completion 
 

Comments as at 29.07.2010 Follow-on Actions 

9. Inspection of Corporate premises at 
Harrow Arts Centre, Hatch End for 
management of asbestos, 
management of legionella and 
contractors on site. 

 

Mike Brown 
Nicola Maisuria  
28/07/2010 

Meeting with Graham Morgan 
and Patrick Biles for site 
inspection. 

o Premises Manager training 
need identified in line with 
responsibility. 

o Improved and updated 
asbestos management plan. 

o Clarity on recording and 
registering legionella testing. 

o Clear and precise site 
information and log system. 

 
10. Inspection of Corporate premises at 

Harrow Teachers' Centre, Tudor 
Road for management of asbestos, 
management of legionella and 
contractors on site. 

Mike Brown 
Nicola Maisuria  
28/07/2010 

Meeting with Adrian Parker 
and Michael Boyle for site 
inspection. 

o Premises Manager training 
need identified in line with 
responsibility. 

o Improved and updated 
asbestos management plan. 

o Clarity on recording and 
registering legionella testing. 

o Clear and precise site 
information and log system. 

125



Action Plan on General Issues and Corporate Property contd 
 
  

Action 
 

Recommendation Action owner & Target 
Date for Completion 
 

Comments as at 29.07.2010 Follow-on Actions 

11. Inspection of Corporate Premises at 
Kenton Library for management of 
asbestos, management of legionella 
and contractors on site. 

 

Mike Brown 
Nicola Maisuria  
29/07/2010 

Meeting with Richard Young 
for site discussion. 
 

o Premises Manager training 
need identified in line with 
responsibility. 

o Improved and updated 
asbestos management plan 
(Note: no known asbestos on 
site). 

o Legionella sampling and 
testing in place. 

o Improved site information 
required. 

 
12. Evidence at Corporate premises 

inspected, of similar need, for quality 
information and premises manager 
training to be improved in line with 
agreement for school property. 

 

Mike Brown 
 
December 2010  

Agreement that Harrow 
Council will extend the action 
under existing Improvement 
Notices for school premises to 
incorporate all Corporate 
property. 
 

Review progress monthly, and 
update HSE Inspector. 

13. Premises Manager training 
(comparable with responsibility) to be 
undertaken for all staff managing 
Corporate property. 

 

H&S Mark Riordan 
 
January 2011 

Agreed on 28/29 July 2010 
with HSE Inspector to 
undertake appropriate training 
for premises managers. 
 

Closely monitor attendance and 
content of training programme.. 

126



Action Plan on General Issues and Corporate Property contd 
 
  

Action 
 

Recommendation Action owner & Target 
Date for Completion 
 

Comments as at 29.07.2010 Follow-on Actions 

14. Improved and updated Asbestos 
Management Plans for all Corporate 
property. 

Mike Brown 
Kash Harbham 
 
March 2011 

Agreed on 28/29 July with 
HSE Inspector to extend 
existing survey of school 
property to incorporate all 
Corporate premises. 
 

Programme of inspections to be 
developed. 

15. Review routine of legionella testing 
and monitoring in line with agreed 
Risk Assessment and Action Plan to 
incorporate Cyclical Maintenance and 
regular site management actions. 

 

George Ogunsiji 
Ashok Bhimji 
 
March 2011 

Ensure safe working policies 
are in place for 
recording/testing (routine and 
cyclical) and responsive action 
in maintenance follow-up. 
 

Improve sharing data on cyclical 
work in association with regular 
temperature checks. 

16. Review, update and re-issue to all 
Corporate and school premises 
managers detailed Site Building 
Services Handbook. 

 

George Ogunsiji 
Mike Brown 
 
March 2011 

Handbook to include Site 
Management Plan for 
prevention of Legionella and 
Asbestos Management. 
 

Update regularly on progress to 
ensure timely editing and re-
issue. 

 

127



Action Plan on Harrow Health and Safety Team's Recommendations 
 
  

Action 
 

Recommendation Follow-on Actions Action Owner Completion Date 
 

1. Internal policies and procedures 
require review. 

Update the policies and procedures. Mark Riordan September 2010  

2. There are gaps in the information, 
instruction and training provided to 
duty holders. 

To review and provide the necessary 
training to all duty holders with 
responsibility for asbestos 
management. 
 

Mark Riordan December 2010  

3. Some asbestos management plans 
are not site specific or are out of date. 

Update the asbestos management 
plans, where required, ensure they are 
site specific and issued to schools. 
 

Mike Brown January 2011  

4. The record keeping for the monitoring 
of asbestos in schools is inadequate. 

Introduce systems to ensure effective 
record keeping across all schools.  This 
to include investigating the merits of 
web-based systems and the resources 
allocated to asbestos management 
generally. 
 

Mark Riordan 
Mike Brown 
Heather Clements 

January 2011  

5. There are issues regarding the safe 
control of maintenance and project 
work where schools organise work 
autonomously. 

To develop and communicate a protocol 
for schools to follow when 
commissioning maintenance and 
project work autonomously. 
 

Mark Riordan 
Mike Brown 
Heather Clements  

September 2010  

128



 
  

Action 
 

Recommendation Follow-on Actions Action Owner Completion Date 
 

6. Contractors have not always been 
supplied with the relevant asbestos 
information prior to commencing 
work. 

Parts 2, 3, 4 & 5 above. Mark Riordan 
Mike Brown 
Heather Clements 

January 2011 

7. Monitoring systems for safety and 
performance have not effectively 
escalated this risk to the relevant 
management tiers. 

i) Review health and safety 
governance structures within the 
schools and the Council, including 
performance reporting. 

 
ii) Introduce systems of audit and 

review to monitor and measure 
performance. 

 

(i) Heather 
Clements 
Mark Riordan 

 
(ii) Mark Riordan 

(i)  November 2010  
 
 
 
 
(ii) January 2011  

8. Senior Management Review of 
controls in place including 
governance and responsibility at 
corporate level. 

Investigation into competency of staff in 
complying with their responsibilities 
leading to disciplinary action if 
appropriate. 

Brendon Hills 
Mark Riordan 
Mike Brown 

January 2011 

 
 

129



130

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 References from Council and other Committees/Panels
	9a Reference from the Cabinet meeting on 15 December 2010
	9b Report of the Director of Legal and Governance Services
	GARM Capital Programme reportEnclosure

	10 IInternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) Update
	11 INFORMATION REPORT - Annual Audit Letter 2009/10
	Harrow Council Annual Audit Letter 2010

	12 INFORMATION REPORT -  Risk, Audit & Fraud Division Activity Update
	GARM C 19th January 2011 Q3 Activity Update APPENDIX 1
	GARMC 19th January 2011 Q3 Activity Update APPENDIX 2
	GARMC 19 January 2011 Activity Update APPENDIX 3
	GARMC 19th January 2011 Q3 Activity Update APPENDIX 4


